Ga-ta TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT SYSTEM, INC.
pé— AGENDA

Everyone Rides.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Notice is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Texoma Area Paratransit System will
be held August 16, 2023 @ 2:00pm virtually at: https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/87483074482
as follows:

. Establish Quorum, Call to Order and Invocation

Il. Public Comments - Citizens may speak on items listed on this agenda. A “Request to Speak Card” should
be completed and returned to the Board Secretary before the Board meeting convenes. Citizen comments
are limited to three (3) minutes.

1. Approval of Board Minutes — Minutes from the May 17, 2023, meeting is attached and submitted for
review and consideration of approval.

V. Approval of Proposal from Huitt-Zollars for TAPS new Facility Professional Services — Staff having
presented HZI Professional Services Proposal to the Board requests consideration and approval.

V. Monthly Financial Update — Staff have provided financial reports and will answer any questions Board has
regarding reports.

VL. Capital Projects — Staff will update the Board on planned capital projects.

VII. Operational Update — Staff provide operational reports and will answer any questions the Board has
regarding reports.

VIII. Executive Session - Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, the board may
convene into executive session to discuss the following subjects and reconvene to take any
action resulting from the Executive Session (the board reserves the right to convene into
executive session throughout this meeting):

1. For deliberation of contract negotiations with a third party. Section 551.0725.

Following the closed Executive Session, the Board of Directors will reconvene in open and public
session and take any such action as may be desirable or necessary as a result of the closed
deliberations.

IX. FY2024 TAPS Budget — Staff will present Board with proposed budget for discussion and consideration for
approval.

X. Transdev PPOP Agreement — Staff will present Board with proposed updated Transdev Agreement for
discussion and consideration for approval.

XI. Schedule next Board meeting — Next Board meeting to be tentatively scheduled for November 15, 2023 at
2pm. Board meeting will include officer elections.

XIl.  Comments by TAPS Board of Directors

Xll.  Adjournment



BOARD
MINUTES




' Evem;a Rides. ‘ é-
TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT SYSTEM

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING

May 17,2023
MEMBERS PRESENT: Pamela Howeth Chairperson, J.D. Clark Vice Chairman, Matt Sicking,
Edwina Lane, and Kevin Hayes. and James Throne. Phyllis James,
MEMBERS MISSING: Mike Campbell, Kevin Benton

STAFF PRESENT: Shellie White, Scott Parten, Brenda Davis, Eddie Brunk, Bill Null, Joe Penson,
Christina Zamora, and Karen Kemp.

GUESTS PRESENT: Clay Barnett, Josh Walker, and Derrick Breun

I. CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Pamela Howeth declared a quorum, calling the
meeting to crder at 2:05 PM.

I1. INVOCATION: Kevin Hayes provided invocation.

L PUBLIC COMMENTS: Citizens may speak on items listed on the agenda as Public
Hearings. A "request to speak card" should be completed and returned to the
Board Secretary before the Board considers the item listed under Public Hearings.
Citizen Comments on public hearings are limited to three (3) minutes.

There were no speakers.

IV. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES: Chairperson Pamela Howeth presented the
minutes from the February 15,2023 Board Meeting for approval. Phyllis James
made a motion to approve the board minutes as presented. Kevin Hayes seconded
the motion. The motion was passed unanimously.

V. TAPS Bank Accounts: Shellie White discussed changes to the Simmons bank

accounts. With no questions or concerns.

V1.  New Transit Building: Shellie White gave an update on the Building
Progress. The RFQ for architectural and engineering was posted on April 17,




VIL

VIIL

IX.

XI.

XII.

XI1II,

2023. A proposal meeting was held on May 8,2023 Two inferested parties
attended the meeting. May 22,2023 questions will be posted on the website.
Responses are due June 27,2023. July 5,2023 will be the award date.
Shellie asked for the Board Members to consider joining the Selection
Committee five is the goal to be on the Committee. The selection committee
currently consist of Chairperson Pam Howeth, Josh Walker, and Matt
Sicking. Edwina Lane made a motion to approve the Selection Committee to
make the Final decision on which company is to be awarded the contract.
Treasurer Phyliss James seconded the motion and the motion passed
unanimously.

TAPS Ride Vouchers: General Manager Shellie White presented the Ride
Vouches that were created for our agencies and asked the Board to approve the
cost of a one-way ticket to be $2.00 Member Matt Sicking made the motion to
approve the Voucher cost of $2.00 one-way Motion was seconded by Member
James Thorne the motion passed unanimously.

Monthly Financial Update: General Manager Shellie White gave the financial
update for February, March, April. Member James Thorne made a motion to
approve the Finical update Matt Sicking seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously.

Capital Projects: General Manger Shellie White gave the update on our Capital
projects. In March we purchased a Forklift, and the covered parking project was
completed. All Projects were paid for through Grants. All was reviewed without
significant concern from the Board

Operational Update: Staff updated the Board on trip data and advertising for
recruiting more employees, as well as our drug testing findings. All was reviewed
without significant concern from the Board.

Schedule next Board Meeting: Set for August 16,2023 @ 2:00pm.

Comments by TAPS Board of Directors : Chairperson Pam Howeth welcomed
our new Grants writer Christina Zamora to our team. No other comments or
questions from the TAPS Board of Directors.

Adjournment: Chairperson Pam Howeth called for adjournment at 2:47 pm



o

HUITT

HZ’ ZOLLARS

August 3, 2023

Ms. Shellie White

General Manager

Texoma Area Paratransit Systermn (TAPS)
6104 Texoma Pkwy

Sherman, TX 75090

903.893.4601

Shellie.white@transdev.com

Reference:  TAPS Operating Facility
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090
Proposal for Professional Architectural and Engineering Consulting Services

Dear Ms. White:

Huitt-Zallars, Inc. {Huitt-Zollars) appreciates the opportunity to provide this proposal for professional
architectural and engineering consuiting services to Texoma Area Paraifransit System (TAPS)
(Client) on the new TAPS Operating Facility located at 6104 Texoma Pkwy in Sherman, Texas
(Project). Our proposal is based upon the scope of services, compensation, schedule, terms and
conditions and attachments contained herein.

The below scope is based on the conceptual design prepared by Huitt-Zollars, Inc. depicting an
addition of 7,277 sf and renovation of the existing area of 1,220 sf, and as shown in Attachment B.
Significant revisions to the conceptual design may require additional scope and budgst that is not
included in this proposal. If additional services are required a separate scope and fee will be
provided to the Client for review and approval.

The project includes Architectural and Engineering Design Services for a new Administrative and
Operations Facility of approximately 7400 SF. This proposal consists of the following
services/disciplines:
s Huitt-Zollars and some subconsultants will perform: Architectural, Interior Design, Furniture
Development Package, MER Engineering, Structural Engineering, Civil Engineering, Project
Specifications, AV / IT Systems, and Cost Estimating.

Specifically, we understand that we will provide the following:

l. SCOPE OF SERVICES:

Design Development

Services will include: _

Further development of approved Space / Floor plans.

Meet with Client on Furniture needs and requirements.

Develop Preiiminary Furniture Budget.

Development of 2 Interior finish and furniture schemes.

Development of preliminary designs for Structural, MEP and AV / IT systems.
Preliminary design for site / civil issues.

Further development of exterior design elements for the building.

Architectural coordination with Structural, MEP (Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing)
and Civil systems and requirements.

HUITT-ZOLLARS, INC. SHERMAN OFFICE 0: 903,328.2090
1800 Teague Dr., Suite 100, Sherman, TX 75090 huitt-zollars.com




Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) Mmﬂ% HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ ' ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

» Further coordination of furniture types and selections.
s One potential visit to Furniture dealer’s showroom is included.
s Provide opinion of probable construction cost estimate {(OPCC).

Deliverable: 100% Desian Development drawing package of Architectural, interiors, MEP,
Structural, Civil scopes, and OPCC.

Construction Documents

Upon Client approval of Design Development Phase, Huitt-Zollars will commence with
Construction Documents Phase.
Services will include:
« Architectural floor plans defining space lay-outs, dimensions, finish selections and
locations of materials, and references to elevations and details.
o Preparation of Demolition floor plans, as applicable, for removal of existing,
partitions, ceilings, ductwork and lighting systems.
Architectural interior elevations, wall finishes and miliwork.
Furniture drawings, finishes and specifications.
Architectural Site Plan and Building elevations.
Architectural reflected ceiling plans with lighting and MEP devices.
Door, hardware, and finish schedules.
Civil Engineering Site Plan, site utilities, and related details.
MEP and Structural Engineering Drawings.
AV /T systems design elements.
Specifications for all disciplines.
Submit 100% Construction Documents for City review.
Upon City approval of the Construction Documents, Huitt-Zollars will issue
documents for bidding, permitting and Texas Accessibility Standards/Americans
with Disabilities Act (TAS/ADA) review through the Texas Department of Licensing
and Regulation (TDLR).
» Provide opinion of probable construction cost estimate.

* & & ®» & & » & & & 0@

Deliverables: 100% Final Construction Documents, OPCC and Specifications
{Architectural, Interiors, MEP, Structural, Civil scopes).

Bidding Assistance

o Huitt-Zollars will assist the Client with the preparation of the bid form, scope
statement, pre-bid agenda, responses to bidders RFI's and issue addenda if
necessary and bid tabulations form.

s Huitt-Zoliars will assist the Client in the review and evaluation of Bid packages
received.

e Huitt-Zollars will provide bid recommendations to the Client.

Construction Administration
Professional support services for Bidding, Construction Administration, Close-Out Record

Documents and Warranty Reviews, including:
s Aftend bi-weekly construction on-site meetings.

Page | 2




Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) K"g@ HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

« Visit the job site up to two times per month to review the progress and quality of
the work, as well as compliance with the Construction Documents.

* Review contractor submittals, such as shop drawings, product data, and samples
to ensure they meet the design concept and comply with contract documents.
Huitt-Zollars review shall not include a review of the accuracy or completeness of
details, such as guantities, dimensions, weights or gauges, fabrication processes,
construction means or methods, coordination of the work with other trades or
construction safety precautions, all of which are the sole responsibility of the
Contractor. Huitt-Zollars' review shall be conducted with reasonable promptness
while allowing sufficient time in Huitt-Zollars’ judgment to permit adequate review.
Review of a specific item shall not indicate that Huitt-Zollars has reviewed the
entire assembly of which the item is a component.

» Based on observations of construction progress at the site and on a review of the
Contractor's Payment Request, Huitt-Zollars shall make recommendations to the
Client relative to progress payments. Huiti-Zollars shall not be deemed to
represent that he has made any examination to ascertain how and for what
purpose the Contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the contract sum.

e« Review and comment on contractor's substantial completion punch list items
and/or work to be corrected or replaced.

« Review furniture submittals, and coordination with the Furniture Dealer on timing
for furniture order, lead times, and delivery.

» One site visit to review installation with furniture Dealer and document any issues
or items needing repair or replacement.

Il COMPENSATION:

Our total Lump Sum Fee for this project is $595,000.00.

Hl. EXCLUDED SERVICES:

Excluded Scope Items include, but are not limited to the following:

Additional ALTA or boundary surveys

Additional geotechnical studies and/or reports

Additional topographic mapping

Agency fees (to be paid for by developer/Client)

Subsurface Utility Engineering (Levels A&B)

Preliminary/Final Plat

FEMA flood plain mapping/LOMR/CLOMR

Traffic Study/Anaiysis/Signai plan preparation

United States Corps of Engineers permit preparation and/or processing
10. Historical and archeological investigations

11. Construction staking services

12. Legal descriptions and easement documents

13. Construction phase storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) or services
14. Wetlands Survey and/or Delineation

15. Environmental studies/reports

16. Noise Study

17. Retaining/Decorative wall plans and structural calculations.

18. Upstream or downstream storm drainage analysis

19. Waste management plan (WMP)

CoNDO LN

Page | 3




Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) R HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ ! ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

20. Any other work tasks not specifically set forth in Section | - Scope of Services.

v, CLIENT PROVIDED ITEMS:

Client shall provide Huitt-Zoliars with the following:
1. Signed Contract and Natice to Proceed
2. Access to project site
3. Agency fees (as applicable)

V. SCHEDULE:

Following receipt of your notice o proceed and a signed contract we anticipate requiring:
e 8 weeks to complete the Design Development;
* 16 weeks o complete the Construction Documents; and
= 6 weeks to complete the bid/permitting.

Construction is estimated to take 8 months to complete. Construction administration will be
provided for the duration of construction on the project.

vi, DISCLOSURE:

For proposing architectural services, we are required by the TBAE Rules and Reguiation of the
Board Regulating the Practice of Architecture, to disclose that our services are provided under
the jurisdiction of the Texas Board of Architectural Examiners and that complaints regarding
professional practices of persons registered as architects in Texas may be made to TBAE, 333
Guadalupe, Suite 2-350, Austin, Texas 78701-3942, telephone 512-305-9000.

Vii. TERMS & CONDITIONS

Following are the Terms and Conditions that wiil apply to this Agreement between Huitt-
Zollars, Inc. (HZI) and Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) (Client):

1. AUTHORIZATION FOR WORK TO PROCEED

Signing of this Letter Agreement for services shall be authorization by the Client for HZI to
proceed with the work. This Agreement represents the entire understanding of Client and HZI
as 1o those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any
force or effect with respect to those matters covered hereunder. This Agreement may not be
amended, modified or altered except in writing, signed by the Parties. This Agreement shall
not be construed against the Party preparing it, but shall be construed as if both Parties
prepared it.

2. OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS
It is recognized that neither HZ! nor its Client has control over the cost of labor, materials or
equipment, over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices, or over competitive
bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, HZI cannot and does not warrant or
represent that bids or negotiated prices to construct the part of the project for which it has
provided services will not vary from the Client’'s budget for the Project or from an estimate of
the Cost of the Work or evaluation prepared or agreed to by HZI.

Page | 4




Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) m%é HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ’ ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

3. STANDARD OF CARE
Services performed by HZ| under this Agreement will be conducted in a manner consistent
with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently
practicing in the same locality, at the same time and under similar conditions (the “Standard
of Care”). HZI shall perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such skili and
care and the orderly progress of the Project. No other representation, expressed or implied,
and no warranty or guarantee is included or intended in this Agreement, or in any report,
opinion, document or otherwise. Notwithstanding any other representations made elsewhere
in this Agreement or in the execution of the Project, this Standard of Care shall not be
modified. HZ) shall act as an independent contractor at all times during the performance of its
services, and no term of this Agreement, either expressed or implied, shall create an agency
or fiduciary relationship.

4. TIME OF PERFORMANCE
Consultant shall perform its services to meet the schedule as expeditiously as is consistent
with the exercise of professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project.

5. BILLING AND PAYMENT

The CLIENT, recognizing that timely payment is a material part of the consideration of this
AGREEMENT, shall pay HUITT-ZOLLARS for services performed in accordance with the
rates and charges set forth herein. Invoices will be submitted by HUITT-ZOLLARS on a
monthly basis and shall be due and payable within thirty (30) calendar days of invoice date. If
the CLIENT objects to all or any portion of an invoice, the CLIENT shall so notify HUITT-
ZOLLARS in writing within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the invoice in question, but will
pay, when due, that portion of the invoice not in dispute.

The CLIENT shall pay an additional charge of one-and-one-half percent (1.5%) (or the
maximum percentage allowed by law, whichever is lower) of the invoiced amount per month
for any payment received by HUITT-ZOLLARS more than thirty (30) calendar days from date
of the invoice, excepting any portion of the invoiced amount in dispute and resolved in favor
of CLIENT. Payment thereafter shall first be applied to accrued interest and then to the
principal unpaid amount.

If CLIENT, for any reason, fails to pay an invoice or the undisputed portion of a HUITT-
ZOLLARS invoice within sixty (60} calendar days of invoice date, HUITT-ZOLLARS will notify
the CLIENT by registered mail that HUITT-ZOLLARS shall cease work on the project in ten
(10) calendar days if the invoice in question is not paid. In this case, the CLIENT shall waive
any claim against HUITT-ZOLLARS, and shall defend and indemnify HUITT-ZOLLARS from
and against any claims for injury or loss stemming from HUITT-ZOLLARS' cessation of
service, CLIENT shall also pay HUITT-ZOLLARS the cost associated with premature project
demobilization. In the event the project is remobilized, CLIENT shall also pay the cost of
remobilization, and shall renegotiate appropriate contract terms and conditions, such as those
associated with budget, schedule or scope of service.

In the event any invoice or portion thereof is disputed by CLIENT, CLIENT shall notify HUITT-
ZOLLARS within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the bill in question, and CLIENT and
HUITT-ZOLLARS shall work together to resolve the matter within forty-five (45) days of its
being called to HUITT-ZOLLARS' attention. If resolution of the matter is not attained within
forty-five (45) calendar days, either party may terminate this AGREEMENT.

Page | 5



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) ME HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ : ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

6.

10.

MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitied by
law, neither the Client nor HZI, their respective officers, directors, partners, employees,
contractors or subconsultants shall be liable to the other or shall make any claim for any
incidental, indirect or consequential damages arising out of or connected in any way to the
Project or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of consequential damages shall include, but
is not limited to, loss of use, loss of profit, loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation
and any other consequential damages that either party may have incurred from any cause of
action including negligence, strict liability, breach of contract and breach of strict or implied
warranty. Both the CLIENT and HZI shall require simiiar waivers of consequential damages
protecting all the entities or persons named herein in ali contracts and subcontracts with others
involved in this Project. This mutual waiver shall survive termination or completion of this
Contract.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Any services beyond those specified herein will be provided for separately under a mutually
agreed upon written authorization from the Client including the additional Scope of Services,
Additional Fees and revised Schedule.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

The laws of the State where the Project is located will govern the validity of this Agreement.
Any action or proceeding arising from or pertaining to this Agreement shall be brought in a
state or federal court of that State and in the county in which the Project is located. The parties
shall not challenge the law to be applied, the venue or jurisdiction so long as such action or
proceeding is brought in accordance and compiiance with this Articie 10.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS--SUSPENSION OF SERVICES

Both parties acknowledge that HZI's scope of services does not include any services related
to the discovery of or presence of any hazardous or toxic materials. In the event HZI or any
other party encounters any hazardous or toxic materials, or should it become known to HZI
that such materials may be present on or about the jobsite or any adjacent areas that may
affect the performance of HZ!'s services, HZI may, at its sole option and without liability for
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of its services under this
Agreement until the Client retains appropriate consultants or contractors to identify and abate
or remove the hazardous or toxic materiais and warrants that the jobsite is in full compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations.

CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION

If Construction Phase Services are part of this Agreement, HZI shall visit the site at intervals
agreed to in writing by the Client and HZ! in order to observe the progress and quality of the
portion of the Work that is the subject of this Agreement completed by the Contractor. Such
visits and observation are not intended to be an exhaustive check or a detailed inspection of
the Contractor's work but rather are to allow HZI to become generally famiiiar with the Work
in progress and to determine, in general, if the portion of the Work that is the subject of this
Agreement is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Based on these
general observations, HZI shall keep the Client informed about the progress of the Work and
shall endeavor to guard the Client against deficiencies in the Work.

if the Client desires more extensive project observation or fulltime project representation, the
Client shall request that such services be provided by HZI as Additional Services in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Whether periodic, more extensive or full-time

Page | 6




Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) =S HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ ' ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

11.

12.

13.

project representation is provided, HZI shall not supervise, direct or have control over the
Contractor's work nor have any responsibility for the construction means, methods,
techniques, sequences or procedures selected by the Contractor nor for the Contractor's
safety precautions or programs in connection with the Work. These rights and responsibilities
are solely those of the Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents. HZI shall not
be responsible for any acts or omissions of the Contractor, subcontractor, any entity
performing any portions of the Work, or any agents or employees of any of them. HZI does
not guarantee the performance of the Contractor and shall not be responsible for the
Contractor's failure to perform its Work in accordance with the Contract Documents or any
applicable laws, codes, rules or regulations.

JOBSITE SAFETY

Neither the HZ| activities of HZI, nor the presence of HZI or its employees and subconsultants
at a construction/project site, shall relieve the General Contractor of its obligations, duties and
responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence,
techniques or procedures necessary for performing, superintending and coordinating the
Work in accordance with the contract documents and any health or safety precautions
required by any regulatory agencies. HZI and its personnel have no authotity to exercise any
control over any construction contractor or its employees in connection with their work or any
health or safety programs or procedures. The Client agrees that the General Contractor shail
be solely responsible for jobsite safety, and warrants that this intent shall be carried out in the
Client's contract with the General Contractor.

The Client also agrees that the Client, HZ) and HZI's subconsuitants shall be indemnified by
the General Contractor and shall be made additional insureds under the General Contractor's
policies of general liability insurance. The Client shall furnish to HZ! certificates of insurance
from the General Contractor evidencing the required coverage specified above. The
certificates shall include a provision that HZ! shall receive thirty (30) days minimum written
notification in the event of cancellation, non-renewal or material change of coverage. Proof of
such insurance in the form of a standard Accord certificate shall be sent to the Client and HZ!
prior to the General Contractor commencement of construction.

RIGHT TO RELY ON CLIENT-PROVIDED INFORMATION

Client shall be responsible for, and HZ! may rely upon, the accuracy and completeness of all
requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and other information furnished by or on
behalf of Client or any of its other consultants to HZl. HZ| may use such requirements,
programs, instructions, reports, data, plans and information in performing or furnishing
services under this Agreement. Any increased costs incurred by HZI due to changes in or the
incorrectness of information provided by or on behalf of the Client or any of its other
consuitants shall be compensable to HZI as Additional Services.

COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

Prior to HZ1 providing to the Client any Instruments of Service in electronic form or the Client
providing to HZ1 any electronic data for incarporation into the Instruments of Service, the Client
and HZI shall by separate written agreement set forth the specific conditions governing the
format of such Instruments of Service or electronic data, including any special limitations or
licenses not otherwise provided in this Agreement.

HZI grants to the Client a nonexclusive revocabie license to use HZI's Instruments of Service
solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to
the Project provided that the Client substantially performs its obligations under this

Page | 7



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) L HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ : ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

14.

15.

16.

Agreement, including prompt payment of all sums due pursuant to Article 6. HZ! shall obtain
similar nonexclusive temporary licenses from HZ!'s subconsultants consistent with this
Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Client to authorize the
Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers, as well as the Client's
consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of
Service subject to any protocols established solely and exclusively for use in performing
services or construction for the Project.

In the event the Client uses the Instruments of Service for another project and without retaining
the authors of the Instruments of Service, the Client releases HZI and HZ!'s consuitant(s) from
all claims and causes of action arising from such uses. The Client, to the extent permitted by
law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmiess HZ| and its subconsultants from all costs
and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted
by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Client’s use
of the Instruments of Service under this Section. The terms of this Section shall not apply if
the Client rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 8.

Except for the licenses granted in this Article, no other license or right shall be deemed granted
or implied under this Agreement. Any unauthorized use of the Instruments of Service shall be
at the Client’s sole risk and without liability to HZ| and HZI's subconsultants.

SEVERABILITY

Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any Laws or
Reguiations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid
and bhinding upon Client and HZI, which agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace
such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as
close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

ASSIGNMENT

Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer, sublet or assign any rights or duties under or
interest in this Agreement, including but not limited to monies that are due or monies that may
be due, without the prior written consent of the other party. Subcontracting to subconsuitants,
normally contemplated by HZI as a generally accepted business practice, shall not be
considered an assignment for purposes of this Agreement.

INSURANCE

HZ| shall maintain the following insurance until termination of this Agreement EXCEPT

Professional Liability as defined below:

« Commercial General Liability with policy limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000} for each
occurrence and Two Million ($2,000,000) in the aggregate for bodily injury and property
damage.

» Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used by HZI with
a palicy limit of One Million Dollars (1,000,000} per accident for bodily injury, death of any
person, and property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those
motor vehicles, along with any other statutorily required automobile coverage.

o  Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits.

» Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of
HZ{ services with a limit of One Milliocn Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim and One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) in the aggregate. HZl shall maintain this professional liability
insurance during the term of this Agreement and, if reasonabiy commercially available, for

Page | 8




Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) mmﬁ% HUITT

6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ

» ZOLLARS

August 3, 2023

17.

18.

19.

29,

21.

three (3) years after the Date of Substantial Completion of the construction of the portion
of the Work which is the subject of this Agreement.

« Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, HZI shall cause
the polices for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Client
as an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by HZIl negligent acts or
omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any
of the Client's insurance policies and shall apply fo both ongoing and completed
operations.

o If requested, HZI shall provide certificates of insurance to the Client that evidence
compliance with the requirements in this Section 18.

COMPLANCE WITH LAWS

HZ! shall exercise the reasonable standard of care to comply with requirements of all
applicable codes, regulations, and current written interpretation thereof published and in force
and effect prior to the issuance of the applicable construction permit. In the event of changes
in such codes, regulations or interpretations during the course of the Project that were not and
could not have been reasonably anticipated by HZI and which result in a substantive change
to the construction documents, HZI shall not be held responsible for the resulting additional
costs, fees or time, and shall be entitled to reasonable additionai compensation for the time
and expense of responding to such changes.

CONFIDENTIALITY

HZI recognizes Client’s interests in its confidential financial, programming, operational, and
strategic information. Accordingly, Client wili designate documents or transmittals of such
information as confidential or proprietary and HZ! shall segregate and not disclose such
documents or transmittals or the specific content therein to any third parties except only as
authorized by Client, required by law, for public health or safety, or after the information
otherwise becomes publicly available through other sources.

USE OF SUBCONSULTANTS

HZlI may employ such consultants, engineers, or other subcontractors (collectively,
“Subconsultants”) as it deems necessary or advisable in the performance of its obligations
hereunder; provided HZI must obtain Client's prior written consent to the use of each
Subconsuitant, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. HZI will require each
Subconsuitant to be bound to HZI by the terms of this Agreement to the same extent that HZI
is bound to Client.

THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of
action in favor of a third party against either the Client or HZI. HZI's services under this
Agreement are being performed solely for the Client's benefit, and no other party or entity
shall have any claim against HZI because of this Agreement or the performance or
nonperformance of services hereunder. The Client and HZI agree to require a similar provision
in all contracts with contractors, subcontractors, subconsultants, vendors and other entities
invelved in this Project to carry out the intent of this provision.

AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT:

In executing this Agreement, HZI and Client each individually represents that it has the
necessary financial resources to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, and each has the
necessary corporate authority to execute this Agreement, and perform the Services described
herein.

Page | 9



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) THUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ : ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

22,

23,

24,

25.

26,

27.

28.

COUNTERPARTS, ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which together shall
be deemed an original, but all of which fogether shall constitute cne and the same instrument.
in the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of
a ".pdf” format data file or the like, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation
of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the same force
and effect as if such facsimile or ".pdf’ signature page were an original thereof.

ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

HZ! agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relat:ng to energy efficiency,
which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the
Energy Policy and Conservation Act.

CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS

1) - HZI agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant
to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S5.C. 1251 et seq. HZI
agrees to report each violation to the Client and understands and agrees that the Client
will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure nofification to FTA and the
appropriate EPA Regional Office.

2} HZ! also agrees fo include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

ACCESS TO RECORDS

HZ! agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract
for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this
contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance
of this contract, in which case HZl agrees to maintain same until the CS, the FTA
Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have
disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 49
CFR 18.38(i) (11).

FEDERAL CHANGES
HZ! shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA reguiations, policies, procedures and
directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Master
Agreement between TxDOT and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to
time during the term of this contract. HZI's failure to so comply shall constitute a material
breach of this contract.

CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS

1) HZI agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant
to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et esq. HZI agrees to report each
violation to the Client and understands and agrees that the Client wili, in turn, report each
violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional
Office.

2) HZI also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) projects shall conform to the National 1TS
Architecture and standards pursuant to 23 CFR § 940. Conformance with the National ITS
Architecture is interpreted to mean the use of the National ITS Architecture to develop a

Page | 10



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) T HUNTT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ ' ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

29,

30.

31.

regional ITS architecture in support of integration and the subsequent adherence of all ITS
projects to that regional ITS architecture. Development of the regional ITS architecture should
be consistent with the transportation planning process for Statewide and Metropolitan
Transportation Planning (49 CFR Part 613 and 621).

NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

1)

The Client and HZI acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the
Federal Government in or approvai of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract,
absent the expressed written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal
Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or
fiabilities to the Client, HZI, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract)
pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.

HZ! agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part
with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be
modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject 1o its provisions.

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS

1)

HZI acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986,
as amended, 31 U.S.C. § § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil
Remedies," 49 C.F.R. P 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution
of the underlying contract, HZI certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any
statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the
underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being
performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, HZI further acknowledges
that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudutent claim, statement,
submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the
penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on HZI to the extent the
Federal Government deems appropriate.

MZI also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or
fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under
a conifract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal
assistance originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 48 U.S.C. § 5307, the
Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C.
§ 5307(n)(1) on HZI, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

HZI agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in
part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall
not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS

1)

2)

Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42
U.S.C. §2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S8.C.
§ 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132,
and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, HZI agrees that it will not discriminate against
any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin,
sex, age, or disability. In addition, HZI agrees to comply with applicable Federal
implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

Equal Employment Opportunity - The following equal employment opportunity
requirements apply to the underlying contract:

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VIl of the Civil
Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. §

Page | 11




Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) ﬁm%g HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ: ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

32,

33.

34.

5332, HZl agrees to comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity
requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal
Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of
Labor," 41 C.F.R. Ps 60 et seq ., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal
Emptoyment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. §
2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations,
and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction activities undertaken in
the course of the Project. HZl agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without
regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include,
but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer,
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms
of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, HZI
agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

{b) Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of
1967, as 14 amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.5.C. § 5332,
HZI agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees
for reason of age. In addition, HZl agrees to comply with any implementing
requirements FTA may issue.

(c) Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act,
as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, HZ| agrees that it will comply with the requirements
of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the
Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. P
1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, HZI agrees to
comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

3) HZl also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed In whole or in
part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the
affected parties.

STATE AND LOCAL DISCLAIMER

The use of many of the suggested clauses are not governed by Federal law but are
significantly affected by State law. The language of the suggested clauses may need to be
madified depending on state law, and that before the suggested clauses are used in the
Client’s procurement documents, the Client should consult with their local attorney.

INCORPORATION OF FTA TERMS

The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by
DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual
provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1E are hereby incorporated by
reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, ali FTA mandated terms shall be
deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement.
HZ| shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any Client
requests, which would cause Client to be in violation of the FTA/TxDOT terms and conditions.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
1) HZI covenants that both itself, its principals and its subcontractors presently have no
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any

Page | 12



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) MM% HUITT

6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ

) ZOLLARS

August 3, 2023

35.

36.

37.

manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this
Confract.

2) Prior to entering into this Contract, HZ| is required to inform Client of any real or apparent
organizational conflict of interest. Such organizational conflict of interest exists when the
nature of the work to be performed under a contract may, without some restriction on
future activities, results in an unfair competitive advantage to HZI, or may impact the HZI's
objectivity in performing the contract work.

TERMINATION PROVISIONS

If HZI does not perform the service in accordance with the contract provisions and HZI fails to
provide the service as requested herein, Client may terminate the contract for default.
Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination on HZ| setting forth the manner
in which HZ1 is in default. HZI will only be paid the contract price for service rendered up to
the date of the notice from Client.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE)

1) This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part
26, Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation
Financial Assistance Programs. The national goal for participation of Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%. The assigned DBE goal for participation in the work
to be performed under this contract is 0% of the contract amount.

2) Bidders/offerors are required to document sufficient DBE participation to meet these goals
or, alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for in 49 CFR
26.53. Award of this contract is conditioned on submission of the following prior to award:

i.  The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in this contract;

i. A description of the work each DBE will perform;

iii. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;

iv. Written documentation of the bidder/offerors commitment to use a DBE
subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet the contract goal;

v.  Written documentation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as
provided in HZI's commitment; and

vi. [f the contract goal is not mef, evidence of good faith efforts to do so.
Bidders/Offerors must present the information required above prior to contract
award (see 49 CFR 26.53(3)).

3) HZI must promptly notify the Client whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work
related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work and must make good faith
efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work.
HZ! may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own
forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of the Client.

4) Prompt Payment (DBE and subcontractors) - HZI is required to pay its subcontractors
performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later
than 10 calendar days after HZI's receipt of payment for that work from the Client. In
addition, HZI is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within
10 calendar days after the subcontractor's work related to this contract is satisfactorily
completed.

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

This RFQ is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR 29. As such, HZ| is required to
verify that none of HZI's principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at
49 CFR 29.905, are excluded, or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945. HZI

Page| 13



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) = HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ’ ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

38.

39.

is required to comply with 43 CFR 29, P C and must include the requirement to comply with
49 CFR 29, P C in any lower-tiered transaction it enters into. By signing and submitting its bid,
the HZ| certifies as follows: The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact
relied upon by Client. If it is later determined that HZI knowingly rendered an erronecus
certification, in addition fo remedies available to the Client, the Federal Government may
pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The
bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while
this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. HZI
further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered
transactions.

BREACH AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Disputes: Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by
agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative of the
Client. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within ten (10) days from the date of
receipt of its copy, HZI mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the Program Manager.
In connection with any such appeal, HZI shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to
offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Program Manager shall be binding
upon HZI and HZI shali abide be the decision.

Performance during Dispute: Unless otherwise directed by Client, HZl shall continue
performance under the contract while matters in dispute are being solved.

Claims for Damages: Should either party to the contract suffer injury or damage to person or
property because of any act or amission of the party or of any of his employees, agents, or
others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be made in
writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of
damage.

Remedies: Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes, and
other matters in question between the Client and HZI arising out of or relating to this
agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a
court in Travis County, State of Texas where Client is located.

Rights and Remedies: The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract documents and
the rights and remedies available there under shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any
duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise impased or available by law. No action or
failure to act by the Client or HZI shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of
them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of
or acquiescence in any breach there under, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

LOBBYING (31 U.S.C. 1352, 49 CFR P 19, 49 CFR P 20)

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure
Act of 1995, P.L104-65 (io be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.) — HZI, if this Agreement is
for $100,000 or more, shall file the certification required by 49 CFR P 20, "New Restrictions
on Lobbying,” and shall include this clause in each subcontract for $100,000 or more and shall
require its inclusion in all lower tier transactions for $100,000 or more. “Each contractor tier
shall certify to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to
pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any Client, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant

Page | 14



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) &Ws HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ : ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

40.

or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each contractor tier shall also disclose the
name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying
contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or
award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from contractor tier up to
the Client.

ADA ACCESS

1.

10.

11.

HZ| agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly
individuals and individuals with disabilities have the same right as other individuals to use
public transportation services and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in
planning and designing those services and facilities to implement transportation
accessibility rights for elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities. HZI also agrees
to comply with all applicable provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
as amended, with 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohihits discrimination on the basis of disability;
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101
et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to
individuals with disabilities; and with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended,
42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommaodations be
accessible to individuals with disabilities; and with other laws and amendments {hereto
pertaining to access for individuals with disabilities that may be applicable. In addition, CS
agrees to comply with applicable implementing Federal regulations any later amendments
thereto and agrees to follow applicable Federal directives except to the extent FTA
approves otherwise in writing. Among those regulations and directives are: (a) U.S. DOT
regulations, “Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 C.F.R. P
37;

U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and
Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance,” 49 C.F.R. P 27,
Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S.
DOT reguiations, “Americans with Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for
Transportation Vehicles,” 36 C.F.R. P 1192 and 49 C.F.R. P 38;

U.S. DOJ regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disabiiity in State and Local
Government Services,” 28 C.F.R. P 35;

U.S. DOJ regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public
Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities,” 28 C.F.R. P 36;

U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, "Accommodations for the
Physically Handicapped,” 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;

U.S. EEOC, “Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the
Americans with Disabilities Act,” 29 C.F.R. P 1630;

U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay
Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech
Disabled,” 47 C.F.R. P 64, Subpart F;

U.S. ATBCB regulations, “Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility
Standards,” 36 C.F.R.P 1194;

FTA regulations, “Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons,” 48 C.F.R. P 609;
and

Federal civil rights and nondiscrimination directives implementing the foregoing Federal
laws and regulations, except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise
in writing.

Page | 15



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) T HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ @ ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

M.

42,

43.

FLY AMERICA

Definitions. As used in this clause —

“International air transportation” means transportation by air between a place in the United
States and a place outside the United States or between two places both of which are outside
the United States. 2) “United States” means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and
outlying areas. 3) “U.S.-flag air carrier” means an air carrier holding a certificate under 49
U.S.C. Chapter 411.

When Federal funds are used to fund travel, Section 5 of the International Afr Transportation
Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. 40118) (Fly America Act) requires
contractors, agencies, and others use U.S.-flag air carriers for U.8. Government-financed
international air fransportation of personnel (and their personal effects) or property, to the
extent that service by those carriers is available. It requires the Comptroller General of the
United States, in the absence of satisfactory proof of the necessity for foreign-flag air
transportation, to disallow expenditures from funds, appropriated or otherwise estabiished for
the account of the United States, for international air transportation secured aboard a foreign-
flag air carrier if a U.S.-flag air carrier is available to provide such services.

If available, HZI, in performing work under this contract, shall use U.S.-flag carriers for
international air transportation of personnel (and their personal effects) or property.

In the event that HZI selects a carrier other than a U.S.-flag air carrier for international air
transportation, HZ1 shall include a statement on vouchers invoiving such transportation
essentially as follows:

Statement of Unavailability of U.S.-Flag Air Carriers

International air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flag
air carrier was not available or it was necessary to use foreign- flag air carrier service for the
following reasons. See FAR § 47.403. [State reasons]:

HZ| shall include the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e), in each
subcontract or purchase under this contract that may involve international air transportation.

FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS
HZ! certifies that it:

1. Does not have any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all
judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is
not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority
responsible for collecting the tax liability; and

2. Was not convicted of the felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the
preceding 24 months.

If HZ| cannot so certify, the Client will refer the matter to FTA and not enter into any Third-
Party Agreement with the Third-Party Participant without FTA’s written approval.

Flow-Down. The Client agrees to require HZI to flow this requirement down to participants at
all lower tiers, without regard to the value of any subagreement.

NOTIFICATION TO FTA

if a current or prospective legal matter that may affect the Federal Government emerges, the
Client must promptly notify the FTA Chief Counsel and FTA Regional Counsel for the Region
in which the Recipient is located. The Client must include a similar notification requirement in

Page | 16



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) ETHUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ' ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

its Third-Party Agreements and must require each Third-Party Participant to include an
equivalent provision in its sub agreements at every tier, for any agreement that is a “covered
transaction” according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220.

The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major
dispute, breach, default, litigation, or naming the Federal Government as a party to litigation
or a legal disagreement in any forum for any reason. Matters that may affect the Federal
Government include, but are not limited to, the Federal Government’s interests in the Award,
the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto, or the Federal
Government's administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and requirements.

The Client must promptly notify the U.S. DOT Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief
Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which the Client is located, if the Client has
knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse accurring on a Project receiving assistance from
FTA. The notification provision applies if a person has or may have submitted a false claim
under the Faise Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have committed a criminal
or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity,
or similar misconduct. This responsibility occurs whether the Project is subject to this
Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA, or an agreement involving
a principal, officer, employee, agent, or Third-Party Participant of the Recipient. It also applies
to subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but is not limited
to, knowledge of a criminal or civil investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement
or other investigative agency, a criminal indictment or civil complaint, or probable cause that
could support a criminal indictment, or any other credible information in the possession of the
Recipient.

44, PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA

intellectual Property Rights

This Project is funded through a Federal award with FTA for experimental developmental, or
research work purposes. As such, certain Patent Rights and Data Rights apply to all subject
data first produced in the performance of this Contract. HZI shall grant the Client intellectual
property access and licenses deemed necessary for the work performed under this Contract
and in accordance with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made
by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts
and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by FTA or U.S. DOT.

The terms of an intellectual property agreement and software license rights will be finalized
prior to execution of this Contract and shall, at a minimum, include the following restrictions:

Except for its own internal use, HZI may not publish or reproduce subject data in whoie or in
part, or in any manner or form, nor may HZI authorize others to do so, without the written
consent of FTA, until such time as FTA may have either released or approved the release of
such data to the public. This restriction on publication, however, does not apply to any contract
with an academic institution.

For purposes of this Contract, the term “subject data” means recorded information whether or
not copyrighted, and that is delivered or specified to be delivered as required by the Contract.
Examples of “subject data” include, but are not limited to computer software, standards,
specifications, engineering drawings and associated lists, process sheets, manuals, technical
reports, catalog item identifications, and related information, but do not include financial

Page | 17



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) = HUNTT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ ' ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

45,

reports, cost analyses, or other similar information used for performance or administration of
the Contract. '

The Federal Government reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to
reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for “Federal Government
Purposes,” any subject data or copyright described below. For “Federal Government
Purposes,” means use only for the direct purposes of the Federal Government. Without the
copyright owner's consent, the Federal Government may not extend its Federal license to any
other party.

Any subject data developed under the Contract, whether or not a copyright has been obtained,;
and

Any rights of copyright purchased by HZ! using Federal assistance in whole or in part by the
FTA.

Unless FTA determines otherwise, HZI performing experimental, developmental, or research
work required as part of this Contract agrees to permit FTA to make available to the public,
either FTA’s license in the copyright to any subject data developed in the course of the
Contract, or a copy of the subject data first produced under the Contract for which a copyright
has not been obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or research work, which is the
subject of this Contract, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under
the Contract shall become subject data as defined herein and shall be delivered as the Federal
Government may direct.

Unless prohibited by state law, upon request by the Federal Government, HZ! agrees to
indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government, its officers, agents, and
employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs
and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by HZI of proprietary rights,
copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery,
use, or disposition of any data furnished under that contract. HZ!} shall not be required to
indemnify the Federal Government for any such liability arising out of the wrongful act of any
employee, official, or agents of the Federal Government.

Nothing contained in this clause on rights in data shall imply a license to the Federal
Government under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other
right otherwise granted to the Federal Government under any patent.

Data developed by HZI and financed entirely without using Federal assistance provided by
the Federal Government that has been incorporated into work required by the underlying
Contract is exempt from the requirements herein, provided that HZI identifies those data in
writing at the time of delivery of the Contract work. HZ| agrees to include these requirements
in each subcontract for experimental, developmental, or research work financed in whole or
in part with Federal assistance.

PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE
SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT.
Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds
to:
¢ Procure or obtain;
s Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
e Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment,
services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as
a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part

Page | 18



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) MME HUITT

6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ

ZOLLARS

August 3, 2023

46,

47.

of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered
tefecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by
Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of
such entities).

For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security
surveiliance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance
and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation,
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company {or any
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such
equipment.

Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an
entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consuitation with the Director of the National
Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be
an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered
foreign country.

In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f),
paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs
shall prioritize available funding and technical support o assist affected businesses,
institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to
transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure repiacement
equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers
is sustained.

See Public Law 115-232, section 889 for additional information. See also § 200.471.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

Seat Beit Use

HZ! is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for
its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, company rented
vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms "company-owned” and “company-
leased” refer to vehicles owned or leased either by HZ1 or Agency.

Distracted Driving

HZI agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by
distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic device
supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor
owns, leases, or rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection
with the work performed under this Contract.

SEISMIC SAFETY

HZ! agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and
constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of
Transportation (DOT) Seismic Safety Regulations 49 C.F.R. part 41 and will certify to
compliance to the extent required by the regulation. HZ| also agrees to ensure that all work
performed under this contract, including work performed by a subcontractor, is in compliance

Page | 19



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) L HUITT
6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ®@ ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

48.

49,

50,

with the standards required by the Seismic Safety regulations and the certification of
compliance issued on the project.

SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD

Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted
amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition
Reguiations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. § 1908, or otherwise set by law,
must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors
violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.
(Note that the simplified acquisition threshold determines the procurement procedures that
must be employed pursuant to 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-200.327. The simplified acquisition
threshold does not exempt a procurement from other eligibility or processes requirements that
may apply. For example, Buy America's eligibility and process requirements apply to any
procurement in excess of $150,000. 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j)(13).

SEVERABILITY

HZI agrees that if any provision of this agreement or any amendment thereto is determined to
be invalid, then the remaining provisions thereof that conform to federal laws, regulations,
requirements, and guidance will continue in effect.

TERMINATION/SUSPENSION

Termination for Convenience (General Provision)

The Client may terminate this contract, in whale or in part, at any time by written notice to HZI
when it is in the Client’s best interest. HZ! shall be paid its costs, including contract closeout
costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. HZI shall promptly submit
its termination claim to the Client to be paid. If HZI has any property in its possession belonging
to the Client, HZ1 will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the Client directs.

Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision)

If HZ] does not deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or if the
contract is for services, HZI fails to perform in the manner called for in the contract, or if HZI
fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the Client may terminate this contract
for default. Termination shall be affected by serving a Notice of Termination on HZI setting
forth the manner in which HZl is in default. HZ| will be paid only the contract price for supplies
delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance
set forth in the contract. If i is later determined by the Client that HZ| had an excusable reason
for not performing, such as a strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are
beyond the control of HZI, the Client, after setting up a new delivery of performance schedule,
may allow HZ| to continue work, or treat the termination as a Termination for Convenience.

Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)

The Client, in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow
HZI [an appropriately short period of time] in which to cure the defect. In such case, the Notice
of Termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate
conditions. If HZ! fails to remedy to Client's satisfaction the breach or default of any of the
terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within [10 days] after receipt by HZI of written
notice from Client setting forth the nature of said breach or default, the Client shall have the
right to terminate the contract without any further obligation to HZI. Any such termination for
default shall not in any way operate to preclude the Client from also pursuing all available
remedies against HZI| and its sureties for said breach or default.

Page | 20



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) Wﬁ’g HUITT

6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ

! ZOLLARS

August 3, 2023

51.

Waiver of Remedies for any Breach

In the event that Client elects to waive its remedies for any breach by HZI of any covenant,
term or condition of this contract, such waiver by Client shall not limit Client's remedies for
any succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract.

Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect and Engineering)

The Client may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Client's convenience or
because of the failure of HZ! to fulfilf the contract obligations. The Client shall terminate by
delivering to HZI a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of -
the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, HZI shali (1) immediately discontinue all services
affected (uniess the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the Agency ‘s Contracting
Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information
and materials accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process.
Client has a royaityfree, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or
otherwise use, all such data, drawings, specifications, reparts, estimates, summaries, and
other information and materials.

If the termination is for the convenience of the Ciient, the Client's Contracting Officer shall
make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on
unperformed services. If the termination is for failure of HZI to fulfill the contract obligations,
the Client may complete the work by contact or otherwise and HZI shall be liable for any
additional cost incurred by the Client.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that HZI was not in
default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had
been issued for the convenience of the Client.

TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS
HZ! agrees that it and its employees that participate in the Client’s Award, may not:
« Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the
Recipient's Award is in effect;
« Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the Recipient’'s Award is
in effect; or
e Use forced labor in the performance of the Recipient's Award or subagreements
thereunder.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE WAS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Page | 21



Texoma Area Paratransit System (TAPS) jmi HUITT

6104 Texoma Pkwy, Sherman, TX 75090 HZ ' ZOLLARS
August 3, 2023

52. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOTAL LIABILITY, IN THE
AGGREGATE, OF HZI AND ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, PARTNERS, EMPLOYEES,
AGENTS, AND SUBCONSULTANTS, TO CLIENT, AND ANYONE CLAIMING THROUGH
OR UNDER CLIENT, FOR ANY CLAIMS, LOSSES, COSTS, OR DAMAGES
WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF, RESULTING FROM OR IN ANY WAY RELATING TO
THIS PROJECT OR AGREEMENT, FROM ANY CAUSE OR CAUSES, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND HZI ERRORS AND
OMISSIONS), STRICT LIABILITY, BREACH OF CONTRACT, OR BREACH OF
WARRANTY, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PROCEEDS OF THE AVAILABLE INSURANCE
COVERAGE REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT.

vill.  AUTHORIZATION:

Should this proposal meet with your approval and acceptance, please sign and return to our office
by e-mail fo charnett@huitt-zollars.com. We will schedule the above services as soon as we
receive your authorization. If you have any questions about any aspect of this proposai, please
do not hesitate to give us a call.

Sincerely,

HUITT-ZOLLA INC.

Accepted and Approved for

TEXOMA AREA PARATANSIT SYSTEM

(Signature)
Attachments: (Name)
A- Hourly Rate Schedule
B- Standard ALTA Requirements
(Title)
(Date)

Page | 22



Attachment A

Hourly Rate Schedule



HUTTTZOLARS

2

Dallas/Fort Worth Office
2023
HOURLY RATE SHEET
Engineering/Architecture Interior Design
Principal $310.00 Sr. Interior Designer
Sr. Project Manager $285.00 Interior Designer
QA Manager $250.00 Interior Designer
Design Principal $310.00
Sr. Structural Engineer $270.00 Survey
Project Manager $240.00
Sr. Civil Engineer $250.00 Survey Manager
Sr. Mechanical Engineer $250.00 Sr. Project Surveyor
Sr. Electrical Engineer $250.00 Project Surveyor
Civil Engineer $180.00 Sr. Survey Technician
Structural Engineer $195.00 Survey Technician
Mechanical Engineer $180.00
Electrical Engineer $180.00 Survey Crews
Plumbing Engineer $180.00
EIT $150.00 1-Person Survey Crew
Sr. Architect $250.00 2-Person Survey Crew
Sr. NL Architectural Staff $170.00 3-Person Survey Crew
Architect $165.00
Architect Intern 1 $100.00 Construction
Architect Intern 2 $115.00
Architect Intern 3 $145.00 Construction Manager
Sr. Landscape Architect $195.00 Resident Engineer
Landscape Architect $155.00 Sr. Resident Project Representative
Landscape Architect Intern $115.00 Resident Project Representative
Sr. Planner $300.00 Sr. Construction Inspector
Planner $165.00
Planner Intern $130.00 Administrative
Sr. Sustainability Professional $175.00
Sustainability Professional $145.00 Sr. Project Support
Sr. Designer $175.00 Project Support
Designer $140.00
Sr. CADD Technician $160.00 Reimbursable Expenses
CADD Technician $110.00
Consultants
Other Direct Costs

$ 155.00
$ 125.00
$ 100.00

$240.00
$200.00
$150.00
$130.00
$120.00

$120.00
$180.00
$205.00

$200.00
$155.00
$200.00
$140.00
$130.00

$115.00
$100.00

Cost + 10%
Cost + 10%

Mileage 1IRS Standard Business Mileage Rate



Aftachment B

Conceptual Design Prepared by Huitt-Zollars, Inc.



"IN GHYTIOZLUNH L10% SHORIALOD

101-SV

NVd 3118
ONILSEE

0 THIMYAT 3NES!
maoxidy AR CRAOUY
woRD A TIMINIY

Uy AT NARYHD
10S9HE__ TON 153M0kd

05052 XL ‘NYRHEHS
Adid YHOXAL ¥019

ONIaTing
SNOLLYYIdO
?
NIAQV Sdv1

CETTERTEY

SdeLGO

SNIISIAIINVAQY

LUOOTSIE|OZ-AY MMM
0G0e-gee-Lig
20194 |
X1 HLHOM D02
00E TLINS 'I3TTHIS HLL M 008

SAVIICZLLINH

o ZE9T L ZE0ZVLAL

g




§§ z 9 Qz g
= E ] z =] 31] =
=k e e £ 02 iR a3 =1
HEaBS & : EQ %E g s o
Wwo =8 o 'Si <°5 o= aiig £} z
N EEEGE 5 s é_l HHHE o =z
2% 8% = Qf © 5 E% g BE |eHi
CER " 2 O % w34 sl |58 7] <£E
:Jg = - % 56 §;§%§ g
I. & HHHE
g
o =
= 0
onzl il ubH
m"’“ﬂ-o ] @ A
ILes B o8
B Cosa = 2o
al dess 3 ~H
o o =
3] >5§2 = w
of 39%p g £5
Z Lo = o=
2 Emgn. m GQ
E WA=H = <O
=L . = = <y . -
o [+ M

SITE - PREFERRED OPTION

[l

<

g 91971 22027711




"IN SHVTIOR-LUNK 4362 LHIMAIOD

violy -

NV1d 4001
a3s0dodd

907 DNIMYED 3NSEl
amddy AR USACHAdY
ey A8 CImIAIY
sl AR NMYHG
FOORISIE “ON 1O3r0Md

DBOSL XL ‘NYWYIHS
AN VWOXEL #019

DNIGTINg
SNOILLY¥3Id0
?
NINQV SdV1

Lustnds cnigna |

€dei GO

&
b

SN3ISIEIONVAGY

OO SIBYOZ-HIY MW
000E-SEE-L18
zalaL
XI. ‘HIMOM LMO4
0CE ALINS 1333428 HLL M 005

SUVIIOALLINH

NOLLGO GARHZE-TH - NYid HOOH 1SHH

TTTTTICT

"SINIRIBINOTY JILYWWWVHOOUd TIVUIAO
JAWIS ¥AL13E 01 QIS0dNdZd ONITHNE DNILSIX3 40 20vdS TZMNILA-H3aNn -
"SYIUY IOVHOLSAINYNIINIYIN T10IHIA SdVL NI 14471 ADd ANY FZINININ 01 3115
JHL 40 IINYYLINT 3HL OL ALIWXOY ISCTI N1 GaLVI01 34V SYaXY OITaNd 11V «
ONIEHD TYINLYN JHOW FHNL4YD OL HORIAEX3 NO $331440 -
HEIMON OL 3ONVHLNZ 33A0TdNT -
HLNGS 0L AY1NT OMEnd «
45 022} ‘GILYAONNTY 36 O VIV ONILSIXT »
48 L' NoiLiday -

M3IAYINO

Hd 1557} ZZ02A /01

o




SZ0L-GEEL 18 XV 000€-5€€-219 SNOHsI
Z0L9L SVXIL HIMOM IHO4  GOE RLS LS HIL "M 008 L LSMYHL DF BN
lm we0N auolamy
7 deLeo
41 - &

.m .%ea!{.\. . ¥

JONVYHLING 3S

[raerdiduiigs
0605/ X1 ‘Ueways “Amid ewoxsl 019

ALTTIOVH SNOILVYIdO ANV NIWGV
1ISNVYL 2119Nd SdV.Ll




520L-GEE-218 XV 000E-SE¢-218 SNCHY NNON_,SLO_‘
0605/ X ‘UeuLays “Avid BWOX3] $019

JONVHLINTG 3N ALITIOVH SNOILVHAdO ANV NINAY
1ISNVYL OI'1dNd Sdvl

20194 SYXAL ‘HIHOM 1H0O2  00€ 'IL5 LS HLL "M 00




STOI-GEE-LL8 XVd
2019/ SVXAL

H1dOM 1802 - 00F

000€-5£€-£18 SNOHdJ

IS LS HLL M O05

gl
1 th 2

-

MIAINHFAO 3N

¢coeiv L
0680G.L X1 ‘UeunsyS “Awid Bwoxs] 019

ALTIIDOVH SNOILLVHAdO ANV NIWAY
1ISNVYL 2T1dNd SdVL1




STOL-5EE-L18 Xvd 000E-GEE-LI8 INOHG
Z0L9/ SYXAL "HIiHOM 1HOS 008 '3LS LS H1L "M 008

MIINGINO 3S

ZZTIYLIOL
060G, X1 ‘UBLLIBYS "AMid BWIOX] 019

ALTIIOVd SNOLLVY3d0 ANV NINAVY
1ISNVYL OT'1dNd Sdvl




§Z0L-STE-L LG Xvd 't QODE-GEE-LL8 INOHd ceoeirLiol
0608 X1 'usuuayg “Awid ewoxal v0L9

%&mﬁ%@ JOVINOYA AMId VINOXI L ALTTIDVS SNOILVYIdO ANV NIWAV
| 1ISNVYHL DT19Nd Sdv.L

Z0L9Z SYXIL HLIUOM [¥O4 00 '3LS "LS HLL "M 00S
% 15

Nk

R




SZ0W-GEE-L18 XV DO0E-SEE-L18 INOHS
Z0L9L SYXAL ‘HINOM 1HCd  00F FALS "LE HLL "M 008

fﬁmzw Sde,

ZZ0C/vL0L
0B0GL X1 ‘UBULIBYS "Andid BUIOXS] $019

a%mqmu JOVHOLS IDIHIA MS ALTIIOVH SNOILVHIdO ANV NIWAVY
LISNVYL 2T19Nd SdvL




S7OLSEE-L18 XV 000€-5EE-L48 SNOHd NNQNQEQ_‘
060G/ X1 ‘Ueuisysg “AMid BWOXS] 019

..m.Qmﬂm,O JONVMLNI 2171and ALTIIOVA SNOILVY3dO ANV NIWAV
LISNVYL DI19Nd Sdv.L

Z0LOL SYXZL 'HLHOM 1H0- 00 'H1S LS HLL "M 00S

|

]

e




BANK
REPORT




TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT SYSTEM, INC

End of Month Totals
May 2023

Landmark Bank Acct #9534

BOARD REPORT - BANK DETAIL

tandmark Bank Acct # 9693

Balance at 4/30/2022 § 35,195.07
Deposits 95,706.00
Debits (130,901.07)

Account Balance at 5/31/2022 S -

Checks/Debits
TRANSFER TO NEW ACCOUNT S 130,881.07
Bank fee ] 20.00

$ 130,901.07

Balance at 4/30/2022 5 188,965.75
Deposits 8,664.45
Dehits (10.00)

Account Balance at 5/31/2022 5 197,624.24

Deposits/Credits
FTA Reimbursements S 95,706.00
5 95,706.00

Landmark Bank Acct # 6968

Balance at 4/30/2022 $ 460,805.65
Deposits 466,206.81
Debits (379,741.83)

Account Balance at 4/30/2022 5 547,270.63

Checks/Debits

Transfer for vehicles sold $  8,645.00

Transfer to old account $ 93,896.00

Covered Parking S 45,233.00

Transdev S 231,967.83

$ 379,741.83

Deposits/Credits

Transfer from 9534 Acct
TXDOT Reimbursements
Farebox

Local Contributions
Interest and fees

4§ 224,777.07
$ 232,502.00
$  3,025.12
$ 588334
3 19.28

$ 466,206.81

* 1 .ocal Contributions Honey Grove, Cooke County United Way, Ronald McDonald, Grayson County United Way




TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT SYSTEM, INC
BOARD REPORT - BANK DETAIL

End of Month Totals

June 2023
Landmark Bank Acct # 6968 Landmark Bank Acct # 9693
Balance at 5/31/2022 S 547,270.63 Balance at 5/31/2022 $ 197,624.24
Depaosits 216,314.84 Depaosits 25.99
Debits {456,707.05) Dehits (5.00)
Account Balance at 6/30/2022 S 306,878.42 7 Account Balance at 6/30/2022 $ 197,645.23
Checks/Debits Deposits/Credits
Transdev S 224,690.51 TXDOT Reimbursements $161,911.00
Transdev S 232,016.54 FTA Reimbursements S 49,257.00
Farebox S  4,253.00
Local Contributions S 883.34
interest income and fees 5 10.50

5 456,707.05

* | ocal Contributions Honey Grove, Graysan County United Way

5 216,314.84




TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT SYSTEM, INC
BOARD REPORT - BANK DETAIL

£nd of Month Totals

July 2023
Landmark Bank Acct # 9534 Landmark Bank Acct # 9693
Balance at 6/30/2022 S 306,878.42 Balance at 6/30/2022 S 197,645.23
Depaosits 152,250.19 Deposits 23.55
Debits {228.22) Debits -
Account Balance at 7/31/2022 $ 498,900.39 Account Balance at 7/31/2022 S 197,668.78
Checks/Debits Deposits/Credits
Brenda Davis for training S 228.22 TXDOT Reimbursement S 153,098.00
Farebox $ 3,125.07
Local Contributions S 36,013.34
interest and fees S 13.78
S 228.22 ) $ 192,250.19

* { ocal Contributions City of Denison, Honey Grove, Wise County United Way, City of Sherman-CDBG, Grayson County




p—

)

4

L HILTH

Simmons
Bank.

MEMBER FDIC
P.O. Box 7008
Pine Bluff, AR 71611-7009 -

Return Service Reguested

|'I'I’Il"I""“ill"m‘!}h'llll“‘l" IPethleids it

30900 1 AV 0.471

Date 5/31/23 Page 1
Primary Account XXXXXAXXXXXX0534
Enclosures

24 Hour Telephone Banking:
(877) 245-1234 Toil Free

www simmaonshank.com

Customer Service:
(866) 246-2400 Yoll Free

Texoma Area Paratransit System Inc

6104 Texoma Pkwy

Sherman, TX 75080-2128

CHECKING ACCOUNTS

00001-00001-030800 000502105

1-4SPB-DDAS-01 230601

Simply Business 250 Checking Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number XHOOOOUXXXX8534  Statement Datas 5/01/23 thru 5/31/23
Previtug Batance 35,185, 07 " Dayy fnthestatemsnt peviod 31
2 Deposits/Credits 95, 706.00 Average Ledger 13,301.98
2 Checks/Debits Average Collected 13,301.98

130,801.07
Service Chargse .00
Interest Paid .00
Current Balance .00

Deposits and Additions

Date Description
5/08 MISC PAY FTA1 TREAS 310
P6995G000690800
5/08 MISC PAY FTA1 TREAS 310
P68260000630800
Checks and Withdrawals
Date Description
5/05 Account Analysis Chargs

Amount
27,830.00

67,876.00

Amount
20,00

--- CHECKS IN NUMBER ORDER ---

Date Check No Amount
5111 130,881.07

* penotas skip in sequential check numbers

Daily Balance Information

Date Balance Date
5/01 35,195,07 5/089
5/05 35,178.07 5111

ank you for bankingT

*ii***ii*k***‘#*!***ﬂ Wi‘**'ﬂ‘ END DF

Balance

130,881.07
.00

with Simmons Bank,
ATEMENT

[EEEEREEEEREREESAEEEEELE RS EREEREN.]




=

BRI

 1-4SPB-DDAs-0T 230601
" (0001-00003-030808 000502105

E——

———Previous BaTance

Simmons
Bank.

MEMBER FOIC
P.D. Box 7009

Pine Bluff, AR 71611-7009 -

Return Service Requested

Date 5/31/23 Page (
Primary Account XXXXOXXXAXXBE68
Enclosures 8

24 Hour Telephone Banking:
(877) 245-21234 Toll Free

www simmonshank.com

R T TTIATEP uh|I"|Iull'u"‘“l*"'l'l" TR HIE

30808 1 AV 0.471

by

Texoma Area Paratransit System inc

6104 Texoma Pkwy
Sherman, TX 75080-2128

Simply Business 500 Checking

Customer Service:
(866) 246-2400 Toli Free

CHECKING AECDUNTS

Account Number HHXXAAXKAXAXKBSES

Number of Ehclosures

9
Statement Dates 5101/23 thru 5!31ig§
]

460,805,886 Days—in—thestatementperiod

16 Deposits/Credits 466,207.53  Average Ledger 385,003.69
5 Checks/Debits 379,?56.83 Average Coliected ) 384,825.861
Service Charge .00 Interest Earned 14.28
Interest Paid 14.28  Annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.04%
Current Balance 547 ,270.63 2023 Interest Pald 14.28
Deposits and Additions
Date Description Amount
5/04 Deposit 648,00
5710 Phone! In-Person Transfer PER 130,881.07
5/10 Depos1t 922,861
5/10 sit 2,540.50
5/15 15th 22 23 UNITED WAY OF GR 833.34
£234458
516 In-Person transfer credit from 93,8986,00
Acct No XHOAXXRKDE34-D
65/16 Deposit 2,500.00
5/17 INV PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP 27 ,877.00
17521272678004
5/17 INV-PAYMTS TX DEPT DOF TRNSP 66,219.00
17521272678004
5/18 INV-PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP 93,373.00
17521272878004
5/19 Deposit 701.48
5722 INV-PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP 19,241.00
17521272678004
5722 INV-PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP 25,892.00
17521272678004
5/24 Peposit 878.55
5/28 RelationshipRwds Cash Back 20.00
5/28 Daposit 86.00
5/31 Interest Deposit 14.28
Checks and Withdrawals
Date Description Amount
5/04 Transfer from x5868 to x08693 8,645.00-
5/05 Account Analysis Charge 15.00-
5/17 In-Person transfer debit to 93,896.00-

Acct No. XXXXAXXXXXXXBS68-D




HHTHETHTIRRA

Bank.

MEMBER FDIC

Simply Business 500 Checking KUXAAXKKKXAXEO6B {Continued)

--- CHECKS 1IN NUMBER ORDER ---
pate Check No Amount Date Check No Amount.
5702 1001 45,233,086 5/01 1002 231,967.83
* Denotes skip in sequentisl check numbers

Daily Balance Information

Date Balance Date Balance Date
5701 228,837.82 515 310,768.34  5/24
5/02 183,604 .82 5/16 407,164 ,34 5/26
5/04 175,605.82 5117 407,164.34 5/31
5105 175,590.82 5/18 501,238.80
5/10 309,935.00 5122 546,471.80

RELATIONSHIP REWARDS PROGRANM

H Eata SIR1I23 t XXXXXX§§§§XX69 B
rimary Accoun g
SI“‘II‘I’IO“S Enclosures 9

2

Balance
547,180.35
547,256.35
547 ,270.863

As of 05/25/2023 This account has earned the Relationship Credit for this

statement cycle. This credit will be labeled

"RelationshipRwds Cash Back". Thank you for being a valued

Simmons Bank customer!

Thank you for banking with Simmons Bank,

IEEE2EEEEEER AR R SRR SRR ENEESE] END OF STATEMENT R 2 E2 X RS R RS R LRSS EERE]

. 1-4SPB-DDAS-01 230601
o 00002-00003-0306808 000502105




Bank.

MEMBER FDIC

Simmons

DEFOSITTIGREY

Sityrons Bagk. W 0w LYY Po
: s 182 20
4 QF T s : ’
} ‘ % nmﬂ&___— e '
,E! AOCRNES e T .
i N o j—y .
At | H B ke .
Eﬁ 1 2L 906 TLY 5.3 b, PO
e HO 05/04/2023 $646.00
——
a Slmmons Sunle E:‘“M‘;:%mw .
— y it oo
-=- 2}! e B T EU T :. 7351 | JEa o oo
= ;l = U2
<trevT EE —— .
= i i DR‘K‘SlmJ‘W‘-MHIS?lI -lﬁ‘
| I3wrowde s AETHes0

#0 05/10/2023

$2,540.50

Hiraont Bauk,
petedls)

-
ADDHESS, R — b
CTETANE Lo

LS
oo

Date
Primary Acct No.

53112

3 Fage 3

RKXXKAXAAARKKABIBE

PEPOSIT TIGRET

Almmans Hank, WANY  FDuce oy el

I e i s, ODD :
H s ?_;;,% ity 33.@
i‘t AODTESS, R Q. 0o
H wure
55 :tnl;m‘ S“ E’ED@ ¥ s .
i 1TovT 3, Vo

fHL0a 90y Ay PP T

e el D A Y

#0 05/10/2023

$922.61

DIFD!I"ﬂGKET

Slmmans Bank, jram A .
i '“—mw-a—::?mm’—" i"""ﬂu ASTHR, 00
2w —
o -
m HMIW e ! .
13% 0L Yoy T Ao pe

#0 05/16/2023

$2,500.00

A, ——
\! murn

174 906 g 3

. 1-45PB-DDOAs-01 230601
" 00003-00003-030808 0005021053

#0 05/19/2023

$701.46

R

| ey

I > TAAHSOLY & % | !
SEAVCERKIG -

mw gfaTERLeCTiTERTER atve §5m. a

| wou £ HLAG6,X TR . 3

[N i E

% DEPLG TICKET
Gtmnohs Dank L L - mef SR R
. 2 Joillhy Fe o™
T emmmey ; = B 0o
!ig 7 S o
z DTS e WA
! SaTe, *
3 T IR
AL 206 Gay %8 7L.00
#0 05/26/2023 $86.00
4] o 1002
TRAGEA AREA unmmmslmu biQ vl 68d
D\W“\l’ll\'ﬂ%‘rh
—Twa Hurdred Trity Coe dired Sy Seven 1nd® pus Mt

#1002 05/01/2023

e

$231,967.83

% kg b IEHEY
immons Bink, LT 2 e Gwi g
£ S0 Funeo
E o wmme‘uum ; LALD ) Yoo
.m: b, - ol 9. o=
I3 L Sioy %r{ =X el

#0 05/24/2023

$678.55

ol WZHI 40&0
ll\"%ﬂmmi‘m

Vil = v-ﬂ-«;-.-l-ﬁ-
0
TEEQUA
AREA PATKIAANSIT SYETEM HE e L]
S
PLrde e
T Fock Therynad Tus Hinded Tty Theea $od (0A00 oot Lo prixd

#1001 05/02/2023

$45,233.00




Simmons Bank.

MEMBER FDIC | 865.246.2400

Date 6/30/23 Page 1
Primary Account XOO0OOMXXXX6968
gnclosures 10

Texoma Area Paratransit System Inc
6104 Texoma Pk
sherman TX 75090-2128

Simply Business 300 Checking Number of Enclosures 10
Account Number HRAXKAAXXKKKE268 Statement Dates 6/01/23 thru 7/02/23
Previcus Balance 547,270.63 Days in the statement period 32

15 Deposits/Credits 216,324.34 Average Ledger 353,836.68

3 Checks/Debits 456,732.05 Avaerage Collected 353,807.41
Service Charge 00 Interest Barned 15.50
Interest Paid 15.50 annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.05%
Current Balance 306,878.42 2023 Interest Paid 29.78

Deposits and Additions -

Date Description
6/02 " Deposit B
6/08 Deposit 1,094.55
6/12 Deposit ' 287.50
6/13 MISC PAY FTALl TREAS 310 16,928.00
P69950000690800
6/13  MISC PAY FTAL TREAS 310 - 32,329.00
" P69950000690800 A
6/14  Deposit N .. ...580.50
6/15 15th 22-23 GNITED WAY OF GR ' 833.34
6305607 S
6/15 Deposit 665,35
' 6/22 " Deposit S 50.00
6/22 Deposit 770.52
6/27  RelationshipRwds Cash Back © 20,00
6/28 INV-PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP 16,928.00
17521272678004
ISA~00~0000000000~00~300000C00
0~22~1746000089 ~E%~JEMORG

AN CHASE ~230626~2043~U~00304~
000000001~0~P~>\
ST~820~002059030%
BPR~X~16928~C~ACH~CPX~01~071LC
0269~~~1746000089~~01~08290043
2~DA~00000000136906968~230628~
VENA

TRN~1~2055030\

N1~PE~TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT
SYSTEMINC~49~175212726780C4%
N1~PR~TX DEPT OF TRNSP~75~601\
PER~CN~~TE~53124865633\




Simmons Bank.

MEMBER FDIC | 868.246.2400

51mp1y Business SOO checking

pate 6/30/23 Page
Primary Account xxxxxxxxxxxx6968
Enclosures

XOOOKXKXXXXX6968  (Continued)

Deposxts and. Addltlons
Date Description

ENT~1\
RMR~IV~5130903262300710~AT~169
28\
REF~43~94428215001\
REF~CR~~OPERATING - 30.09.01\
SE~11~002059030N\

6/28 ~  INV-PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP
) 17521272678004
I8a~00~0000000009~00~000G00000
0~ZZ~174600008% ~22~JPMORG

AN CHASE ~230626~2043~ U~00304~
000000001~0~P~>\
ST~820~002059029\
BER~X~3539607~C~ACH~CTK~01~07110
0269~~~1746000089~~01~08290043
2_DA~00000000136906968 ~230628~
VENN '
TRN~1~2059028\
Ni~PE~TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT
SYSTEMINC~49~17521272678004\
N1~PR~TX DEPT OF TRNSE~75~601\
PER~CH~~TE~5124865633\
"ENT~1\
”-*RMR~IV~512180333230@709~A1 596
07\
REF~43~94428214001\
REF~CR~~OPERATING - 30.09.01\
SE~11~002059029\

6/28 INV-PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP
17521272678004
I5A~00~000G00C000~00~000000000
0~2Z~1746000089 ~Z%~JPMORG

AN CHASE ~230626~2043~U~00304~
00000000 L~0~B~>\
ST~B20~00205%028%\
BPR~X~B85376~C~ACH~CTX~01~07110
0269-~~~1746000089~~01~08290043
Z~DA~00000000136906968~230628~
VEN\
TRN~1~2059028\
N1~PE~TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT
SYSTEMINC~45~17521272678004%
N1~PR~TX DEPT OF TRNSP~75~601\
PER~CN~~TE~5124865633\
ENT~1\
RMR~IV~5101804262300708~AT~853
76\
REF~43~94428213001\
REF~CR~~20.509 $58836 FORMULA
GRANTS FOR RURAL ARBAS\
SE~11~002059028%\

6/29 Deposit

T/02 Interest Deposit

d Withdrawals
Description
Account Analysis Charge

i g NUMBER ORDER

1003 224,6%0.51 6/28 1004
* Denotes akip in sequential check numbers

Amount

59,607.00

85,376.00

815.58
15.50

Amount
25.00-

Check No Amount Date Check No Amount

232,016.54




Simmons Bank.

MEMBER FDIC | 866.246.2400

Date 6/30/23 Page 3
Primary ACcount XOOO0GCKKXXXX6968
eEnclosures 10

simply Business 500 Checking XXOOOKXXXXXE968  (Continued)

Date Baiance' Date Balance Date Balance

6/01 | 322,580.12  6/13 373,233,171 6/28 ' 538,063.88
6/02 322,619.12 6/14 . 373,8132.67 6/29 306,862.92
6/05 322,594.12  6/15 375,312.36  7/02 306,878.42
6/08 323,688.67  6/22 376,132 .88

6/12 323,976.17 6/27 376,152.88

As of 06/25/2023 Th:.s account: has eamed. t:he Relationship Cred:.t for th:.s
statement cycle. This credit will be labeled
"RalationshipRwds Cash Back". Thank you for being a valued
Simmons Bank customer!

Thank you for banking with Simmons Bank.
TSRS oS TN LY END OF STATEMENT wkkhhkkhhkhkkhk Rk dkkdkhhkhdd




2

DEPCOSIT TIGKET DEPOSIT TICKET .
Stmmons Bank. TRAN CODE T Jarsnr . Simmons Bank. TRAN CODE | Camm SRS 1o € g
§ (020K 7,2 . ¢ JOA | > e
E;g .. . §1GH HEVI FOR CASH RECEVED % = E 52 %ﬁ?}%&"mmm E .
Hi  wame S B naus . ——
EEE A Enansn > . éig . ADDRESS - Ghenstn .
IE  cirvsTATE g . Bt cresTam ez ansH )
3§= DATE 2 By - ! |E§ DATE g BY e *
FR ] ACCOUNT HUMIEA H T NUMBER -
(=3 —
|3 Tol s ol § 32w | Bl & Ol & o § | DFR, 55
1250003 h 3 113 I : 12 E00QwO L 2 L 1O q Ll 45 d
Depasit Date; 06/02 Amount: $38.00 Deposit  Date: 08/08  Amount; §1,094.55
DEPOSIT TICKET DEPOSIT TIGKET
Simmans Bank. TRAHGOOE 1] casan a1 T Simmens Bank. TRAHCO0E T “jesnin .
i gCON | 125D " 5 |3LEG acy e
—— ¥ H
5%5 s%%sumn % . !ig ‘N HERE FON CASH RECEIVED E)I E 2 g‘ 2 .£’O
i‘ MANE [, §§§ NAME 7oL oM
#]  avoress - it ) EEE a e .
211 crrws‘rm@ LEsACAS Y cmwstare teszeasn
i oate LA T G T e §= DATE BY :
T Akt NITMRER T ACEOUNT RUIMBER
[ B Gy ol 297.80 [ B FOL FLg 2§ ¥ oS©
FE00OD L2 ks Il s a s R -R 11
— S P
Depeosit  Date: 0612 Amount: $2687 .50 Deposit  Date: 06614 Amount: $580.50
% DEPOSIT TICKET — @ CEPOSIT TICKET
Simmons Bank. TRANCOOE (T gagns Loy RIS Simmons Bank. TRANGODE  £7T ) cue .
; §23 ) /o, =° : Loy o, e e
il i LSE JENENEN i v P .
E"s NAME TOTAL FGHE L{ oD i‘% NARKE [
!gg ADDRESS omeRmge * . igi AODRESS Gtk s0E ¥ .
g,( c:rwa'zj , o, H ;}§ CITYrSTATE oo |
B nare 8773wy . i pate BY .
4 F T ACCOUNT NUMEER > F Y RUMBERA :
| 2 LYoy LS LesT38 | 3L9D LY i $ s .o
1250000 & @ M2 1H5000W0 & 2 bt
Deposit  Date: 08/15  Amount; $5865.35 Deposit  Dale; 06/22  Amount: $50.00
| ‘ ©
@ DEPOSIT THCKEY DEFPOSIT TICKET <~
Simmens Bank. TRAN CODE s & 70 s Simmons Bank. TRAH CODE = o YR 75—5. g{
" 5. CAT (o o= ) W=l {o ®o°
4 . H .
iﬁ “"SIGH HERE FOR GASH AEGENED H i £13N HERE FOA CASH RECEIVED H ‘-f-.f'_" -
E§§ HAME Tﬁ/‘f : " §= wame /. fﬂﬁ : -
;gi =l g;i 4 B .
KX crryisTa etyoae i3Y cmvsTa wEageas
W onm AT o R . I | Sy e g R -
&l 7 AGGOUNT RUMBER ' ACCOUHT HUNSEA
13 b 90 G o 7705 |36 Po LY 2§ 81564
13150000 L 2 112 L 5000=0 & 2 b
SN . -
Deposil  Date: 06/22  Amount. $770.52 Depesil  Date: 06/29  Ameount; $8156.58
i - 1003 . = 1004
TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT SYSTEM INC suona n 1003 TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT SYSTEM ING e 1004 .
PH. 903-0d3-56d§ P 0323348
' s .
i ) {
sTwa Hunded Twenty Four Thousand Six Hundred Ninety and 510 Uolars BATE ALOUNT i ++*Tywes Hundred Thirty Two Thousand Sixteen and 54100 Gofars DATE AMOUNT i
. . i . .
522023 $224,690.84 g 6262023 5232,016.64 i )
Y \7& AY
RANSDEV SERVICES INC. [ Pl ) brn 5V SERVICES ING. s
ouE Im cguzcﬂoﬂcsmn DRIVE s o reme 4767 GOLLECTION csu!r‘gn DRIVE 3 /] O g9

oroeR oEHICAGO, 1L 60693
TETY

OMERGCHICAZO, IL 60333
usA

QBN G !? '2 5: éé . ég: .
LY. .

w0 IGO0 3% (08 2R00L 1K

L3LAOESEEN RN

1003 Date: 06/01  Amount; $224,690.51

“OO L00N 10A 9004328

=S . s
IiE]iﬂEG a Q% 54 5# J
Aeallfv cH

135906 9688

Chack

1004 Date: 06/29 Amcunt: $232,016.54




ADDRESS OR NAME CHANGES ~ You are responsible for notifying us of any change in your address or your name. Unless we agree otherwise, change of
address or name must be made in writing by at least one of the account holders. Informing us of your address or name change on a check reorder form is not
sufficient. We will attempt to communicate with you only by use of the most recent address you have provided to us. [f we receive returned mail, we may
impose a service fee.

IF YOUR ADDRESS I8 INCORRECT, MARK THROUGH THE ADDRESS PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS TO:
SHOWN ON THE FRONT OF THIS STATEMENT. COMPLETE THE FORM STREET
AT THE RIGHT, DETACH AND MAIL TO P, O. BOX 7009, PINE BLUFF, AR
71603-7009, CITY STATE ZIP CODE
EFFECTIVE DATE SIGNATURE
PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS
TYPE OF ATM/DEBIT
CHEC SA
ON FOLLOWING ACCOUNTS. ACCOUNT KING VINGS LOAN CcD CARD OTHER
List 21l acoounts you want changed. ‘:ICS:N?BER
We will change only the accounts you
indicate since some customers prefer ACCOUNT
10 maintain separate account NUMBER

addresses.

PLEASE EXAMINE YOUR STATEMENT PROMPTLY AND NOTIFY US OF ANY ERRORS

| RECONCILEMENT INFORMATION |

These 6 Fast, Easy Steps Wil
Reconcile The Balance Shown On
This Statement With The Balance

Shown In Your Checkbook

(1)  Balance now showa in your checking,

(2)  Add interest shown on the stat t..

(3)  Subtract bank charges inciuded in this statement. (be sure
to enter any Bank charges and unrecordad checks in your

CRECKDADK). ... cevvvtvervemreeemsnetenss et e seras e barntsostsarsasesasrensnssoes e 3,
NEW BALANCE SHOWN
N YOUR CHECKBOOK......cooceeeee. 3
(4)  Last balance shown on this statement.........c....ccoccceivevevernmnrsens 5

(5)  Add total of those deposits which have beea made
and shown in your checkbook, but not yet shown
OFt 1S SEALEIIERL. c.ov.. 1ot eeeee e eesees s stonsesseisonse s sssessssrnss s snves $.

SUB-TOTALS ¢

(6)  List outstanding checks below {checks which are shown
in your checkbook, but not yet paid by the bank.)

CHECK AMOUNT CHECK AMOUNT
NUMBER NMUMBER THESE TWO
FIGURES
SHOULD BE
THE SAME
If they are not the same, recheck your
figures. If still not the same, please
call Customer Service.
1-866 246 2400 Toll Fres
TOTAL $
SUBTRACT THIS TOTAL
OF OUTSTANDING £

CHECKS FROM SUB-TOTAL ABOVE  §

ELECTRONIC TRANSFER ERROR RESOLUTION NOTICE (CONSUMER ACCOUNTS ONLY)

In case of Errors or Questions about your Electronic Transfer, call us at §-366-246-2400 or write to us at P. O. Box 7009. Pine Bluff, AR 71611-7009, as soon as you can, if you think
your statement o¢ receipt is wrong, or if you need more informatien about a transfer listed on a statement or a receipt. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent the
FIRST statement on which the problem or error appeared |

() Tell us your name and account number (if any).

) Desceibe the ectar or the fransfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe it is an error or why you need more information.

(3) Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error.
We will investigate your complaint and will ¢oriect iny error protiptly. Hwe take rore than. 10, business days to do-this, we wilk credit your account for the amount you think is in error, so’
thiat you will Bave ise of the money during the timd i takes us to eomplets our investigation.




Simmons Bank.

MEMBER FDIC | B66.246.2400

page 7/31/23 Page 1
Primary ACCOUnt XoOOOOOOOXXX6968
Enclosures g

Texoma Area Paratransit System Inc
6104 Texoma Pk
sherman TX 75090-2128

Simply Business 500 Checking Number of Enclosures 9
Account Number KXKUXKKAKKKKE968  Statement Dates 7/03/23 thru 7/31/23
Previous Balance 306,878.42 Days in the statement peried 29

12 Deposits/Credits 192,256.41 Average Ledger 348,083.12

2 Checks/Debits 248.22 Average Collected 346,891,981
Service Charge .00 Interest Earned 13.78
Interest Paid 13.78 Annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.05%
Current Balance 498,900.39 2023 Interest Paid 43.56

Date Description Amount

7/05 peposit 30.50
7/06 Deposit 764,60
ST/ Deposit ' S 2,500.00

/14 15th 22-23 UNITED WAY OF GR 833.34
6424667

7/14 Deposit B ' 649.05

/19 Deposit 931.20

7/20 Deposit 11,680.00

1/26 RelationshipRwds Cash Back 20.00

7/26  'INV-PAYMTS T DEPT OF TRNSP ' B3,649.00

717521272678004 ' ) o

IS5A~00~000000¢000~00~000900000
0~ZZ~1746000089 ~2Z~JPMORG

BN CHASE ~230724~2056~U~06304~
000006001~0~E~>\ :
$T~820~002877430\
BPR~X~63649~C~ACH~CTX~01~07110
0269~~~1746000089~~01~08290043
2~DA~00000000136906968~230726~
Vo : !
 TRM~1~2877430\ _

' N1~PE~TEXOMA AREA FARATRANSIT
SYSTEMINC~4$~17521272678004\
N1~PR~TX DEPT OF TRHNSP~75~601\
PER~CN~~TE~5124865633\
ENT~1\
RMR~IV~5121893332300817~AI~636
PN 333e
REF~43~94467933003\
REF~CR~~QPERATING - 20.09.01\
SE~11~002877430\ S




Simmons Bank.

MEMBER FDIC | 868.246.2400

simply Business 500 checking

pate 7/31/23 Page
Primary Account XXXXXXXXXXXXGQGB
Enclosures

JOOKKXXXXXXE968  (Continued)

Description

Date
- 7/26  THNV-PAYMTS TX DEPT OF TRNSP
17521272678004
18A~00~0000000000~00~000000000¢

0~ZZ~ 1746000089 ~ZZ~JPMORG
AN CHASE ~230724~2056~U~00304~
000000001~0~B~>\
§T~820~002877428\
BER~X~B9444~C~ACH~CTX~01~07110
0269~~~1746000089~~01~08290G43
2~DA~00000000136206968~230726~
VENY

 TRE~1~2877428\
N1~PE~TEXOMA AREA PARATRANSIT
SYSTEMINC~49~17521272678004\

" N1~PR~TX DEBT OF TRNSP~75~601\
PER~CN~~TE~5124865633\
ERT~1\

BMR~IV~5101804262300815~A1~894

49\
REF~43~94467931001\
REF~CR~~20.509 $18058 FORMULA
GRANTS FOR RURAL AREASH
T sme11-002877428\

7/28 Deposit

7/31 Deposit

7/31 Interest Deposit

Chacks and Withdiawals

Date Description

7/06 Account Analysis Charge

Date Check No Amount
7/24 1006 228.22

* Denotes sklp in sequential check nuvmbers

Amount
89,449.00

724,22
21,025.50
13.78

Amount
20.00- '

Daily: Balance Info:manl

Date Balance

T/03 C 306,878.42  7/14
7/05 306,908.92  7/19
7/06 " 307,653.52 7/20

7/10 310,133.52 1/24

Balanée Balénca

Date
311,635,921 1/26 477,136.89
312,567.11  7/28 477,861.11
324,247.11° /31 498,900.39

324,018.89

As of 07/25/2023

This account has earnaed the Relationship Credit for this

statement cycle. This credit will be labeled

"RelationshipRwds Cash Back'.

Simons Bank customer!

Thank you for being a wvalued

Thank you for banking with Simmons Bank.

kkkkdkhkdkdhkkhkhkhhdhkhrhhkhhrkiih

END OF STATEMENT

dhkkhkdkhkkkdkhdkdkddhhdhkhdhihd




DEPOSIT TICKET
Simmons Bank. TRAN COOG | Cinn YV .
5 [O78 JIo,s7
E!% EiGH HERE FOR CASH REGENVED E .
- P
ﬁ; ADDRESS . D s .
igq CITY/STATE wacam
8 pare__ LA /DT ay .
E°B ACCOUNT NUMBER .
| 3o Fote TLE e § 3o,

ES000=0 8280

Deposit Date: 07/05 Amount: $30.50

DEPCSIT TICKET

T A AT
! P e T LR

IR 4 M TS AR

Deposit

CITV/STATE

Simmeons Bank.

‘BWLN KENE FOR CASH NECENED

NAME MPS

DATE _?’/.( 22 av

ATCOUNT HUMBER

|3 G0 Fed

RSO0« L2k

DEPOSIT TICKET ©6h L@gg‘ OO
NGO BT e AT
§- 3o, 7=
Em__!cs;h 5 1.0
T § eSO
Tledq. G0

Date: 07/06 Amounl: $764.80

DEPOSIT TICKET

';:9424_0’5

Simmons Eank. _. TRANcODE [ PRI . . Simmeons Bank, TRAN CODE I J s
Y g dsoe o= b S a5 o~
'2% Wﬂmmm f'( . iiz wn% ECeven w E l )
B o 7 pry B e 7D e
g; ADURESS srihsos . iij AooRess i s .
i CITY/STATE LESSCASH ifE cirvistare eSS A .
. iﬁ%wmm:?//—"’/ﬂfi*-wmt:: T T EEE oave (YL LS i‘wﬁt:: e -
ACCOUNT RUME; ‘GL‘.BLIM
126 FobrLy odin § ALOD, 0D | % b YOL TLE L= L4y &8
1250000 h g b2 B E00CaO L 3 1
Deposit  Date: 07/40  Amount; $2,600.00 Deposit Dale: 0714 Amount: $649.05
DEPOSIT TICKET DEPOSIT TICKET
Simmons Bani. TRANCOTE 57T ] g YR o Simmens Bank. TRANCOOE (@ owse .
By §AO! | re =< 1 :;42‘1‘% Ny vsTes
%!E SWW‘@ E ]lg? JST D D lig B0 HERE CASH ARCEVED g q’ -JS_—-QD
i p doo | M e LA . <93 0,°°
Eig CITY/STATE e . . §§§ CrrvsTATE e wssacens .
éEi paTE ay i o= & e
|BACTo LY L T3 LD [B26 JoL 2L Y e $ \ .
#EOO0WD & 2Ln 125000=0 1 2 4t
Deposil  Dafe: 07/49  Amount: $931.20 Daposit Date: 7120 Amount: $11,680.00
. ' I‘ﬂ
! @ OEPOSIT TICKET b v . @ DEPCSIT TIOKET
simmons Bank. e 2. A4 Simmans Bank, TRANGOOE (T caann .
- 23 rii > L] °.§£§§iﬁ;{ DO D
sig ‘8104 HEAS FOR CASH AECEWED % . /D * gg EX3H HERE FOA CASH RECENED gé@‘l{: ’ ‘Q’ 2 i -5. L]
B ame ? ; : i ghs NAME 7 ;z S ¢ -
=i - TR - e . H aconess T
gsg ABDRESS ;:g -
2 CITY/STATE LesTeas I CITY/STATE Leetcasy
| et ' R ‘
°
L 13 L ToL LY o TR Y23 |3 e Foo 26E oS Q) O &L SO
50000 B2 M2 8 E5000m0 b 2 ki
Deposil Date: 07/26 Amount: §724.22 Deposit  Date; 07131 Amount: $21,025.50
- - e et B Tave”
F TEXCMA AREA PAHATRANSIT SYSTEM INC NGNS B 1008
mm:m
&é‘i?l“.\ﬂ,ﬂmlltl i
*+Two Hundsad Twenty Elght and 32100 Goflars e AMGUNT i
» TX m’ \/ THAZ023 sza.z2 §
BRENDA DAVIS [}
omE 95 PLANTATION AVE
oRoeR oPOTTSBORG, TX 75078 H
UsA ;
Bl T e : m
RUERIEN OO L0OBK KOG 2900432 13E90GFEAN RSN
Check 1006 Date: 07/24  Amount: $228.22




ADDRESS OR NAME CHANGES — You are responsible for notifying us of any change in your address or your name. Unless we agree otherwise, change of
address or name must be made in writing by at least one of the account holders. Informing us of your address or name change on a check reorder form is not
sufficient. We will attempt to communicate with you only by use of the most recent address you have provided to us. If we receive returned mail, we may
impose a service fee.

IF YQOUR ADDRESS IS INCORRECT, MARK THROUGH THE ADDRESS PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS TO:
SHOWN O THE FRONT OF THIS STATEMENT, COMPLETE THE FORM STREGT
AT THE RIGHT, DETACH AND MAIL TO P, O, BOX 7009, PINE BLUFF, AR
71603-7009.

CITY STATE ZIP CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE SIGNATURE
PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS

TYPE OF ATM /DEBIT
CHECKING SAVT
ON FOLLOWING ACCOUNTS, ACCOUNT C NGS LOAN cD CARD OTHER
List all accounts you wank changed. ACCOUNT
. NUMBER

We will change only the accounts you
indicate sinee some customers prefer ACCOUNT
to maintain separate account NUMBER
addresses.
I PLEASE EXAMINE YOUR STATEMENT PROMPTLY AND NOTIFY US OF ANY ERRORS

I RECONCILEMENT INFORMATION |

These § Fast, Easy Steps Wil

(1) Balax.lce now shown in your checking,.., . ¥ Reconcile The Balance Shown On
()  Add interest shown on the statement . -5 “This Statement With The Balance
(3)  Subtract bank charges included in this statement. (be sure Shown In Your Checkbook
to enter any Bank charges and unrecorded checks in your
ChECkBOOK). .. vvcveet et s s e e S
NEW BALANCE SHOWN
IN YOUR CHECKBOOK.......coc.cooce. §
{4)  Last balance shown on this Statement..........cevcereremvermerrseesenneen. 3

{5) Add totat of those deposits which have been made
and shown in your checkbook, but not yet shown
O $hiS SEAEIMERE. ..o coes et insscsrecn s s s senersnse e )

SUB-TOTALS ¢

(6)  List outstanding checks below (checks which are shown
in your checkbook, but not yet paid by the bank.)

CHECK AMOUNT CHECK AMOUNT
NUMBER NUMBER THESE TWG
FIGURES
SHOULD BE
THE SAME
If they are not the same, recheck your
figures. If still not the same, please
call Customer Service.
1-866 246 2400 Toll Free
TOTAL $
SUBTRACT THIS TOTAL
OF QUTSTANDING 5

CHECKS FROM SUB-TOTAL ABOVE  §

ELECTRONIC TRANSFER ERROR RESOLUTION NOTICE (CONSUMER ACCOUNTS ONLY)}

In case of Errors or Questions about your Electronic Transfer, call us at 1-866-246.2400 or write to us at P. 0. Box 7009, Pine Bluff, AR 716117005, as soon as you ¢an, if you think
your statement or receipt is wrong, or if you need more information about a transfer listed on a statemnent or a receipt. We must hear from you no later than 6¢ days after we sent the
FIRST staternent on which the problem or errer appeared .

1 Telt us your name and account aurnber (if any).

@ Describe the error or the transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you beiteve it is an error or why you need more information.

(6} Tell us the dollar anount of the suspected error.
We will lavestigate your complaint and:will correct any &rror prowmptly. “If we 1ake more than 10 business days to do this, we will credit your acsount for the amount you think is in efror, $o.
_that-'ynh will have use of the mongy during the time it takes us to-complste dur ‘nvestigation.




e

HEMCERERAT

00001-00001-030848 000502105

© 1-4SPB-DDAs-01 230601

pe—

e

- Date 5/31/23 Page 1
Simmons Primary Account XXXXXXXXXXXX9693

Bank@ Enclosures

MEMBER FDIC
P.0. Box 7009 !
Pine Bluff, AR 71611-7009 : - : - :

Return Service Requested

24 Hour Telephone Banking:
{877) 245-1234 Toll Free

www, simmmonsbanl.com

ST I T[T TN BTN TR 1T T T I
Hsloaqaflvéw" e e L PP ey Customer Service:

B6&) 246-2400 Toll Free
2 Texoma Area Paraftransit System Inc (868)

6104 Texoma Pkwy
Sherman, TX 75090-2128

CHECKING ACCOUNTS

Money Market Savings Business Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number XXXAXKAAXKKXOB93  Statement Dates  5/01/23 thru 5/31/28 j
“Previous Batance 188, 06975 Days—tnthe statement period Ky e
1 Deposits/Credits 8.645.00 Average Ledger 196,769, 42 ;
1 Checks/Debits 10.00 Average Collected 196,769 .42
Service Charge .00  Interest Earned 19,48
Interest Paid 19.49  Annual Percentage Yield Earnad 0.12%
Current Balance 197,624.24 2023 Interest Paid 19,49

Deposits and Additions

Date Dascription Amount
5/04 Transfer from x6968 to x9693 8,645.00
5/31% Interest Deposit 19.48

Checks and Withdrawals

Date Pescription Amount
5105 Account Analysis Charge 10,00-

Daily Balance Information

Date Balance Date Balance
5/01 188,969.758 5/05 197,604 .75

5/04 197,614.75 5/3 197,624.24

Thank you for banking with Simmons Bank,

IZA R A AR R AR RS RS REEARE RSN END 0;: STATEMENT ***!*w********ﬂ*k*******;\vt*a




Simmons Bank.

MEMBER FDIC l 8685.246.2400

Date 6/30/23 Page 1
Primary ACCount XOOO000000K9693
Enclosures

Texoma Area Paratransit System Inc
6104 Texoma_Pk
Sherman TX 75090-2128

Money Market Savings Business Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number HRXKAKAKHKNKI6I93 Statement Dates 6/01/23 thru 7/02/23
Previous Balance 197,624.24 Days in the statement periocd 3z
Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 197,619.86

1 Checks/Debits 5.00 Average Collected 197,619.86
Service Charge .00 Interest Earned 25.99
Interest Paid 25.99 Annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.15%
Carrent Balance 197,645.23 2023 Interest Paid 45,48

Beposits and Adds
Date Description

Amount

" 7/02 7 Interest Deposit o 25.9%
g g :
Date Description Amount
6/05 Account Analysis Charge 5.00~

ce: Information : :
Balance Date Balance Date Balance
197,624.24  6/05 197,619.24 7/02 7 197,645.23

Thank you for banking with Simmons Bank.
khwhhhhkkharkhkkhkhkhkkhrthkehrt END OF STATEMENT Tkkdktkhhhkkhhk ke khhh kN R NN K




ADDRESS OR NAME CHANGES ~ You are respensible for notifying us of any change in your address or your name. Uniess we agree otherwise, change of
address or name must be made in writing by at least one of the account holders. Informing us of your address or name change on a check reorder form is not
sufficient. We will attempt to communicate with you only by use of the most recent address you have provided to us. If we receive returned mail, we may
impose a service fee.

IF YOUR ADDRESS I8 INCORRECT, MARK THRCUGH THE ADDRESS PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS TO:
SHOWN ON THE FRONT OF THIS STATEMENT. COMPLETE THE FORM STREET
AT THE RIGHT, DETACH AND MAIL TO P. 0. BOX 7009, PINE BLUFF, AR
71603-7008.
CITY STATE Z1P CODE
EFFECTIVE DATE SIGNATURE
PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS
TYPE OF ATM / DEBIT
: CHECKING SAVIN
ON FOLLOWING ACCOUNTS. ACCOUNT AVINGS LOAN co CARD OTHER
List all accounts you want changed. ;%Ch(:gég‘
We wiil change only the you
indicate since some customers prefer ACCOUNT
to maintain separate account NUMBER
addresses.

PLEASE EXAMINE YOUR STATEMENT PROMPTLY AND NOTIFY US OF ANY ERRORS

| RECONCILEMENT INFORMATION |

These § Faat, Easy Steps Will
Reconcile The Balance Shown On
This Statement With The Balance

(1} Balance now shown in your checking,...
{2)  Add interest shown on the statement .

{3)  Subtract bank charges included in this statement. (be surs Shown In Your Checkbook
to enter any Bank charges and unrecorded checks in your
ShekBOOK) e e 5
NEW BALANCE SHOWN
IN YOUR CHECKBOOK.................... §

(4)  Last balance shown on this SEAEMENL......veverviiiensiiens e e $
(5)  Add total of those deposits which have been made

and shown in your checkbook, but not yet shown

O thi8 STAEEMENL. .cviverimierssin oo s s e et sae senessrenne 5

SUB-TOTALS ¢

(6)  Listoutstunding checks below (checks which are shown
in your checkbook, but not yet paid by the bank.)

CHECK AMOUNT CHECK AMOUNT
NUMBER NUMBER THESE TWOQO,
FIGURES
SHOULD BE
THE, SAME
1f they ave not the same, recheck your
fipures, If still not the same, please
eall Customer Service.
1-866 245 2400 Toll Free
TOTAL 5
SUBTRACT THIS TOTAL
OF QUTSTANDING s

CHECKS FROM SUB-TOTAL ABOVE  §

ELECTRONIC TRANSFER ERROR RESOLUTION NOTICE (CONSUMER ACCOUNTS ONLY)

In case of Errors or Questions about your Eleetronic Transfer, call us at §-866-246-2400 or write to us at P. O, Box 7009, Pine Bluff, AR 716117009, as soon as you ca, if you think
your statement or receipt is wrong, or if you nced more information sbout a transfer listed on a statement or a receipt. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sont the
FIRST statement on which the problem or error appeared .

n Tell us your name and account number (3f any).

2) Drescribe the error or the transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you beleve it is an error or why you need more information.

(3) Telt us the doliar ameunt of the suspected emor,
We will investigate your complai and will eorrect sy error promptly. i we take inare. than [0 business days to do tis, we-will:credityour atzount for the amourit you. think Is i error, so.
thiat yoir will haveiuse of the moagy during the time it takes us o complete our investigation:’




Simmons Bank.

MEMBER FRIC | 866.246,2400

pate 7/31/23 Page 1
Primary Account XOOOOOOOO(K9693
Enclosures

Texoma Area Paratrans1t System Inc
6104 Texoma Pk WH
Sherman TX 75090-2128

Money Market Savings Business Number of Enclosures 0
Account Number KUAXKAKKELXRI693 Statement Dates 7/03/23 thru 7/31/23
Previcus Balance 197,645.23 Days in the statement peried 29

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 197,645.23

Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected 197,645.23
Service Charge .00 Interest Earned 23.55
Interest Paid 23.55 Annual Percentage Yield Earned 0.15%
Current Balance 197,668.78 2023 Interest Paid 69.03

Date Descrlptlon Amount
7731 Interest Deposit 23.55 o
Balance Date Balance
197,645.23 7731 197,668.78

Thank you Ffor banking with Sinmons Bank.
dhkkhkkkkddhtarhhrkkhkhrkkhk END OF STATEMENT Ahhkhkkrdkhkk ikt khkhrkhkhdkhd




ADDRESS OR NAME CHANGES ~ You are responsible for notifying us of any change in your address or your name. Unless we agree otherwise, change of
address or name must be made in writing by at least one of the account hotders. Informing us of your address or name change on a check reorder form is not
sufficient. We will attempt to commusicate with you only by use of the most recent address you have provided to us. [f we receive returned mait, we may
impose a service fee.

IF ¥YOUR ADDRESS [S INCORRECT, MARK THROUGH THE ADDRESS PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS TO:
SHOWN ON THE FRONT OF THIS STATEMENT. COMPLETE THE FORM TRIET
AT THE RIGHT, DETACH AND MAIL TO P. 0. BOX 7049, PINE BLUFF, AR
71603-7009. CITY STATE ZIP CODE
EFFECTIVE DATE SIGNATURE
PLEASE CHANGE MY ADDRESS
TYPE OF ATM / DEBIT
C SAVINGS

ON FOLLOWING ACCOUNTS. ACCOUNT HECKING . LOAN cD CARD OTHER
List all accounts you want changed. ACCOUNT

: NUMBER
We will change only the accounts you
indicate since some customers prefer ACCOUNT
to maintain separate account NUMBER
addresses,

PLEASE EXAMINE YOUR STATEMENT PROMPTLY AND NOTIFY US OF ANY ERRORS l
| RECONCILEMENT INFORMATION |

These 6 Fast, Fasy Steps Wil
Reconcile The Balaace Shown On
This Statement With The Balance

Shown In Your Checkhook

(1}  Balance now shown in your checking....
(2)  Add interest shown on the statement ...
{3)  Subtract bank charges included in this statement, {be sure

1o eater any Bank charges and unrecorded checks in your

GREGKDOOKY. . 1vvesvevosrecescer s seaes s semssssees e socisasanssssonsesssnsasstne 9,
NEW BALANCE SHOWN
iN YOUR CHECKBOOK........coooiein 8
(4)  Last balance shown on this StAtement. ... vsisvnnronneione 8

(5)  Add totat of these deposits which have been made
and shown in your checkbook, but not yet showa
O HhiS SEUEIMEIL. ....o.oooe et s s semrememsinsnssnt s s 5

SUB-TOTALS ¢

(6)  List outstanding checks below {checks which are shown
in your checkbook, but not yet paid by the bank.)

CHECK AMOUNT CHECK. AMOUNT ; ———
NUMBER NUMBER THESE TWO
FIGURES
g SHOULD BE
g THE SAME
If they are not the same, recheck your
figures, 1f still not the same, please
call Customer Service.
15866246, 2400 Tall Free
TOTAL $
SUBTRACT THIS TGTAL
QF OUTSTANDING $

CHECKS FROM SUB-TOTAL ABOVE &

LLECTRONIC TRANSFER ERROR RESOLUTION NOTICE (CONSUMER ACCOUNTS ONLY)

In case of Brroes or Questions about your Electronic Transfer, call us at 1-866-246-2400 or write to us at P. O, Box 7009, Pine Bluff, AR 71611-7009, a3 soon as you can, if you think
your statement or receipt is wrong, or if you need more information sbout a transfer listed on a statement ot a receipt. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent the
FIRST statement on which the probiem or error appeared .

(8] Tell us your name and account number (B any).

2 Describe the error or the transfer you are ansure about, and explain as ciearly as you can why you believe it is an error or why you need more information.

[£)] Teil us the dollar amount of the suspected error.
We will.investigaté yois complaiat and will i:m_-r:ecr: anyermrpmmptly 1f e take more than 10 businass days to do diis, we will credit your account for-the amaunt you think is in error, so:
that you will iave use of thie money during the time. it takes us to- complete our investigation.




FINANCE
REPORT




78'££5°960'T

5 LY8'SP9

8Z0EL 05K

1gap JuipuelsINg 18410

FUIpURISIND WILNT PO

SulpuRISN( ARDSURE
EZOT/TE/L0 J0 52 Buisy v

I0ELT 6E'91T S00TT £8°L1T Z6'L0T QT PET vZ12T L9S%T TLTT £8'8TT 99°4TT

- £72'6E {SeL's) (18£8} £00'LE {oze'L) {3g5'5) 9zO'LET z81'se 17992 (869'2) 951°8ET - {sso7)swodut 12N
- LLT'92T 819'1E2 8ST'SET A%+ SYP'SEE PTE'TTE 159°2727 0/S'0ET £6E'LTT ¥5L'87T YIOLLE'T SasUPANT [R10 )
STE'T 8SPY 799 6TET 28ty 6LV 0ze STE R PITEL SNOBURRISHA
0S€'T 0SET 0SE'T ; 05E'T 0SE"T 0SE'T DS€'T 0SE'T 0SE'T 00S'ET ssuadxz pun-u| - sy
99L'T 99L'T 954’1 S 994'T 99LT 99T 99L'T 99/'T 99T 65941 FIURINSY| PAROY
STH'ST YIL'ET SIP'ET 9zTOL 0SSZT £04L'TT L9S'E1 PHT'ST 780LT 09£'8ET ang
18T 6IT'T 7502 o17's LT ObEY 78¢L'E Liv'T 1057 E6E'PT S

S6£°T SZE'T EOLT 1687 wre Irs'T 08T 96T ET6T 868°T BL6'8T % aomuas fo sinoy
£L7T'8L 806'c8 8916 SEVZE L0E'e6 26129 19£'8L ££9'58 £0V'E8 15LT8 9%7'L78 150D DIYRLEA ABPSURS]
ESTVET ESTYIT £5TVLL €621 ESTVET £5TreT EST'PZT £9TPLY €521 374741 TESTHE'T 3507 paxlj Aspsues]

595UD0XSE Juneiedg
- 070’992 £88'€TC LOVTET 1’957 829°L2T 6LL'50T LL9'6SE £54'S5T YEOYST £L50'97¢ 08ESIS'T SBNURARY |B10L
£ [ e 6¥Z'T - SOTEE SRR 18E'T SHOBURIBISIN
- G 009°€ anuaAay SuIsiLBAPY
ETT'ZT it's " 4TS'ST SpPAEI0I 2B APIUTA
- - SUOIEFNGLIIIGD B1RALI
£9L°6Y E8E'E E8E'E E¥S'TS 800°TTT 05552 | geY'IST SUOTINGLIUOT J|GNd
05€'T CSE'T 05T QOSE“L 0SET 005'ET SUDIINGLIUDD Puy-u]
LEV'E 86'E 99€"E LPS'E £68'SE anuanay Sunesadg
82691 T¥9'TBT ueqin 104 XL
SIL'ES 990'09 TS9'ES £09°65 697765 BNy 1OG X1
£66'19 - pa|qesiq '8 Apap|3 OTES Y.1d
sr6'9L L6t'S8 651'68 9/€'S8 SIS'vI8 [BINY TTES V.4
69£°08 8569 PIT'0L 6TETE 9v8'252 10 534D LOES V1S
- SHI'vE TELEE 9SETL BET'9S 0£9'6% BTL'8LT ueqiny L0ES VIS
EN ny (11} unf A dy FETH GEX] [T 334 AON a1k Sanusnay Suneiady
|enpy

1H0d34 TVIONVNIZ DNILVHId0 €207 A




FY 2023 OPERATING BUDGET VARIANCE REPORT

FTA 5307 470,833 278,719  (192,114) -41%
FTA 5307 CARES ACT - 252,846 252,846 0%
FTA 5311 Rural 601,516 814,515 212,999 35%
FTA 5310 Elderly & Disabled 51,661 61,993 10,332 20%
TX DOT Urban 642,099 191,642 (450,457) -70%
TX DOT Rural 182,568 594,269 411,702 226%
Operating Revenue 35,000 35,893 893 3%
In-kind Contributions 13,500 13,500 - 0%
Public Contributions 314,839 251,498 (63,341) -20%
Private Contributions - - - 0%
Vehicle Proceeds - 15,524 15,524 0%
Advertising Revenue - 3,600 3,600 0%
Miscellaneous - 1,381 1,381 0%
Total Revenues 2,312,016 2,515,380 203,364 9%
Expenses

Transdev Fixed Cost 1,242,531 1,242,531 0 0%
Transdev Variable Cost 338,308 827,266 {11,042) -1%

hours of service 19,232 18,978 {253) -1%
Utilities 27,000 24,393 {2,607) -10%
Fuel 175,000 138,760 {36,240) -21%
Board Insurance 15,677 17,659 1,982 13%
In-Kind Rent 13,500 13,500 - 0%
Miscellaneous - 13,114 13,114 0%
Total Expenses 2,312,016 2,277,224 (34,792) -2%

Net Income(Loss) - 238,156 238,156




CAPITAL
PROJECTS




- - [0UIIBPIG BN

- - - - EET'SY LPL'0L - BGL LY 907'1T - OrT'ey ¥TI'BIT sosuadxg [e10),

69T'6 6916 sdoyde| Yeis

L8077 OFT'Er LLT'SE Apms Aujigiseas Suip|ing

- 100y Mfjed SIURUSIUIEIN

EET'SY FA A 86L'LY S¥E'SET Jupireg pauano) Ay JuBUIUIRK

QER'LT 0EB'LT BI04 AlDE4 DIUBUSIUIEN

- - - - £ET'Sh LEL0L - 86L'LY 907’11 - OYT'EY PEZL'BIT s3NUBARY [B10),

69T'6 6916 N0y Sup|od

LEQ OrT'Er LIT'Sh Apnis Auigise=s Buipiing

1re'et TvT'6T qeyay AJIned JUEUBIUIEK | COXL

- qeyay ANjIeY 2IUBUBIUEIN LOOX],

766'ST LI6'Tk 86L'LY L0L9TT geyay AUfIed FIUBUSINEN L0AXL

0E8°LT [113: 04 23uelsIssy [2)deD GEES Vid

GE ny nr Al RelW iy N [EF] [ k=) RON EETe) aix Senuanay [ENde)

[emay

140d3YH S123f0¥d TVLIdVI £C0C Ad




OPERATIONS
UPDATE



06'02 ¥e'ge $ 808'L8 $ 65¢l 6’1 /8°1E6°'L  ¥le'se 6% %56 G88'c 810°c abeieny
87'61 Sr.Lc $ 00¥'ss $ 0572l oLt Z8.l'L 1992458 25 g9 %56 i¥l'T 006°¢ gcHnr
LETT 6L°9¢ $ 6.1'08 $ €9¢l 8g'} 206’1 819°0F £ %56 00 LAL'E ge-unp
rL6T 0 £€6¢ $ zze'ss $ ¢9¢l S¥L 180C 6Ly le %96 ze0'e £€91'¢ cz-fe
IS61  6l'6¢ ¢ 005'6. $ ovel 11 6/8'L 269°'9¢ l %96 pelL'e G¥8'C ¢z-Idy _
£0'8¢ L0'8¢ $ 6¥6'6Q $ veel gL GeL'e GGL'Th 14 %96 y0z'e 0ge’e ec-iey !
5'0¢ 88°9¢ $ BS.'vY $ co¢cl LS 0€5°L L6E°LE gl %56 60T 1) 24l gc-qed
87°0T ¥oge $ tZ6'SL $ 1I¥El 5L 6L} vze'oe lc %E6 80.C €062 ge-uer
S¥'61 cl'6e $ 9/5°C8 ¢ geel Sl 166°1 A d A 9 %6 9e8°C Leo'e cc2=(d :
060c . Fl6e $ 6/£'08 $ OFvi Syl 688°1 20.'6E 8¢ %L6 86.'C 696°C ¢C¢-"ON
ALV Le'8e $ 89.'6. $ 19°¢l 0s'L Geg'l ¥61°8¢e L8 %56 8¢8'C 9/6°C [ddg *10)]
4 6l°.¢ $ 16628 $ 0g9¢ct 99l 1661 9/2'Lv 1514 %56 pe0'e 20z Zg-des
6TTT ' 02'8¢ $ 0/£'C6 $ Bivl 0s'L £81°C WA 6cl %56 GIZ'e oy’ Zz-bny
8861  Z60¢ $ /6216 $ T9vi A 161C 688°CY 6¥l %6 £S6'C €el'e cene
HdN duy 1809 dug INoH SJNOH soiN  Isenbay duy usye] sdu ] sdu .

SO0 dowang  /sen /sdul paluaq % lenioy  pajnpayos




6E
9F
s[ejuaq L

8Z°6T
Z5°0C

PI'ET
TL5T
10'6C
6861
89°G1
YL

HdlA

%001

%S
%0
%61
%1
%5
%67
S0t
%65

siyjo %

%001
%L

%0

%41

%ET

%S5

%51

%05

%99

dia 10 %

stLT
£1°69
ITVE
6ETT
66°08
€9°9€
95°T¢
veve
dinfiso)

073172923

anzyIea
R

12

Fine
Ry

FHINIOY

[ wouwuops o wearvg —|

871213023

LERTFLEE]

O H202T

GHIRIIOR

THLIGTY
L2023

R Al k]
RRL20

¥/ 38 Firr]

0INGIUIR
Rt

0732033

LEr L]

L (D Eo 7]
LT Lx FeFel

Tot

ror
r 0%

=Ry

T eE

L200v'sL
ST'SEL'E
vOYOrvT
[£7289'8
98'870°Y
Z1069'vT
ZL658'6L
Yo EPS Y
1503
do aa1g

0STT
¥S'tE

QL8T
S0'6
¥l
TLT
05’8
9ror

dipy
/53N

1
190

L LA
LT
LET
9Tt
96"%
00T

anoy
fsduy

[918L'T
97°88
9E°OVE
91°50Z
0T's6
TrLvE
£5°50L
69°CS0T
sinoy

[4:04 43343
YOTIST

0

65 VL8L
S¥CECE
LLTOLE
FS'E069
ET6ILTT
LLTLOBT

S

%56
%86
%0

%C6
%96
%16
Yel6
%6
%656

uINeL Y

Lvic
¥a

0]
fray
95t
Ogt
or
SBET
98L1

|en1ay

Q06¢
55

[4
a5y
69t
6ET
a1
LobT
6481

1e10j Ajyauop
andeirop

Aepy

IS

syo0D

wuuey

|einy uosAeiny
uegtn uosieln
uosAein

painpayss £z-inf

s|e1c]




Lz
sjeiuag duL

LETT
¥ece
0e's¢T
eqeT
81E
¥O'1Z
B8E'LT
V98T
HdIN

LB rared

WRETRG
[l Efirore]

R k2]

L orlad
[ e

T-. DEIEULILII o L] AL e

N0
RN

GHLN20TY
G,
ity

ma
2z

R

L b e red

(LRI
LTI

SLANRTY

GO

ChiOLIT0a2

%007 %00T

%S %ne
%0 %0
Wi 0T
%EeT %St
%9 %9
%81 %ET
%bE eV
%ZS %LS

sigjoo; dupjoos

6L'9Z
§6°0S
ST°ZE
96'Te
ST =T A
LT°9E
9zT'1T
9L'vL
dr1f1s0

0T 6L¥ 08
BEISEY
$S761°6T
[5£8T0T
¥8°08%'F
IR TEY YT
P6'E0L LT
GL9ET'Th
1503
40 Paaq

£5°€T
18'8¢€
TT6T
€L'8
0L'6T
86°LT
v
06'0T
dig
[N

85T
£8°0
E'T
¥e'T
9T
£T'T
66'T
T
snoy
Jfodil,

89°T06T
E5'E0T

I8'esk
60°EvT
88'50T
PO IvE
£9°¥59

£9'566
sanoy

Te'8vood
T9°LEEE
¢
TS°ELPET
8S°0T6E
2y'B9tE
LEVLTL
LT'E8ETT

P1°8SG8T
sa[ju

%56
%66
%0

%E6
%S6
%86
%96
%6
%56

uanel %

rooe 174 %
a8 L8

0 0

LBS [ag]
8t iy
TLT SLT
66¢€ K154
E0ET T8eT
cOLT g96ll

1eso] Ajauoln

andeiuow
Aepd

FBIM

ENolvg]

UiuUE

[edny UOSARID

ueqin uosheln

uoshAelo

[emOY paNpayds gz-unf

s|e10]




sjeruaq diag

rL 61
PO'SC
68708
L
65°5T
0€'8¢
6C°0C
8r'9T
LBLT
HdW

%00T
%9

%0

%te

%CT

%S

%61

KEE

%ES

SIY 30 %

NN

o5
SN
s

Fa ]

eyl bk sd
L ratry

ma\- “PHIPLLEIOL OB I e

huiseed

WY
WANTA
i

oW

:

SN

T

GHLHIE
L REE 2]

uSiani
G505/ 2022

atlorpure]

weHIan
L Lrerared
i Froikid

LA

OSION 2023

01
e
BE
or
o5
o8

oL

il

.’.f\\/l\\\\/!\//\/\\/i\\}i\\i?\)l *

%007
Y%t
%0
%6T
%EL
%S
%1
%aY
%65

dijo %

€2°6¢C
L'ts
06'8%
QE'SE
S5°LL
0Z'1E
89'8E
6LTT
06°S¢

du/isod

9z TeE'es
£8°0¥9'S
LEEGE
¥£'984°0T
TEYTr0T
BETHL'Y
$9'668°9T
6T'58F'6T
e vreesh
10D
do waig

€9°ET
61Tt
86T
L8t
ST°0T
98°0C
0581
61°8
€6°0T

diy

[seln

S¥T
080
[4Al]
0Tt
¥ST
9eT
orT'T
r6'1
£9'7
anoy
fsdial

T0°L80°C
6T EET
5¢'8
8T'16¥
80°9%T
021t
EE"66E
<L'969
$0°960'T
sinoy

95 I6T1IY

ELLEEE
67452
£9'S00TTE
9Z'9E8t
TV ELIE
IT'T018
1S T8PIT
<9'I8S6T
Safll

%96
%96
%001
%56
%96
%96
%96
%56
%S6
uayey %

ZT0E
L0T
9
889
BLE
[438
8eYy
ESET
T6LT

£91E [E101 AIuoin
TtT anseluoip
g Aepo
812 FSIM
Z6€ 4000
8ST uiuueg
18% [eany uosArip
LIVI uegqln uosAeldn
RL8T UosABID

{enpy panpeayas gz-Aely

s[eyo]




Quarterly Management & Compliance Report

FY 2023

Drug & Alcohol May June  fluly
Pre-employment 2 3 5
Employees in test pool 19 18 22
Random 2 1 i
Post Accident 0] 0 0
Reasonable Suspicion 0 0 0
Positive Results 0 0 0
Drug Lab Certification YES YES YES
Safety May June  |July
Preventable incidents 0 1 0
Total incidents 1 2 0
Preventable injuries 0 0 o
Total Injuries 0 0 &)
Safety Meetings 1 1 1
Complaints May June  |luly
Americans with Disabilities

Act (ADA) 0 0 0
Title Vi 0] 0 0
General 0 0 0




TAPS Quarterly Analysis

Analysisof  May through  luly “ 20

Reviewer: Date:

Drug & Alcohol Monitoring

Section 1
Pool size for this quarter
Random Rate

Total # Test Negative Positive Refusals Cancelled Exceeds FTA
Drug Test Type Results Results Results  to Test Tests Minimum?*
Pre-Employment | 10| 10} 0] 0 0| n/a
Random [ 4[ 4| 0| 0|
Post Accident | 0] 0| 0] 0| of n/a
Reasonable Suspicion | of 0] of o] 0| n/a
Return-to-Duty | 0| 0| ol 0| 0] n/a
Follow-Up 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Total (Drug) 14 14 0 0 0 n/a
Alcohol Type
Pre-Employment 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Random 3 3 0| 0 of = ye
Post Accident 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Reasonable Suspicion 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Return-to-Duty ol of 0] 0 0| n/a
Follow-Up 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Total (Alcohol) 3 3 0 0 0

*Random drug testing requirements: Must equal T= (0.50*(D/P}}
*Random alcohol testing requirements: Must equal T= {0.1*(D/P})
where D = size of pool, and P = number of testing periods per year




Taps

- Compliance Review Period

Maintenance Dept

05/1/2023 - 05/31/2023

Section 1 Total number of PMIis completed 25
PM A's Target Miles 5000 8
PM B's Target Miles 10000 1
PM C's Target Miles 30000 0
PM E's Target Miles 60000 0
PM Z's (disinfecting) [target Days 31 16
Buses completed PM Type Miles From previous PM On time Late
323 A/Z 5000/30 X
325 E/Z 5000/30
341 Z 27
343 z 34 X
347 B/Z 5000/27 X
348 AJZ 5000/31 X
351 1 Y74 5000/27 X
356 A 5000 X
358 A7 5000/25
359 Z 24
361 Z 30 X
Buses completed PMType | Miles From previousPM|  On time Late




363 AlZ 5000/28

364 - Az 5000/26

365 Z 30

Accesible equipment in PMs YES
Copies of PMs available YES
SECTION 2 Major Maintenance Projects
Major MaintenanceProjects completed ? YES
Notes |
SECTION 3: Records Retention
Current List of TAPS Vehicles YES
Daily Vehicle Checklists YES
Preventative Maintenance Checklists YES
Warranty Claims NO
SECTION 4: Facilities / Equipment Condition
Maintenance Facilities in Good Condition ? Yes / No
Notes |
Checklist completed 5/5/2023
Equipment in Good Condition ?
Notes |
checklist completed 5/26/2023
Reviewers Signature Date




Taps

Maintenance Dept
Compliance Review Period

. 06/1/2023 - 06/30/2023

Section 1 Total number of PMIs completed 30
PM A’s Target Miles 5000 9
PM B's Target Miles 10000 4
PM C's Target Miles 30000 2
PM E's Target Miles 60000 1
PM Z's (disinfecting) |Target Days 31 14
Buses completed PM Type Miles From previous PM |  On time Late
218 V4 24 X
323 Z 29 X
341 AZ 5000/34 X X
344 z 30
345 A/Z 5000/27
346 E/Z 4980/30
347 Z 34 X
348 B/Z 4623/31 X
349 B 5000 X
355 Z 27 X
358 Z 32 X
359 7 29 X
361 AfZ 5000/26 X
Buses completed PM Type Miles From previous PM On time Late




362 A 5000

- 364 - c/2 © T 4985/21

365 AJZ 5000/22

Accesible equipment in PMs YES
Copies of PMs available YES
SECTION 2 Major Maintenance Projects
Major MaintenanceProjects completed ? YES
Notes I
SECTION 3: Records Retention
Current List of TAPS Vehicles YES
Daily Vehicle Checklists YES
Preventative Maintenance Checklists YES
Warranty Claims NO
SECTION 4: Facilities / Equipment Condition
Maintenance Facilities in Good Condition ? Yes / No
Notes |

Checklist completed 6 /2/2023

Equipment in Good Condition ?

Notes |

checklist completed 6/29/2023

Reviewers Signature Date




Taps Maintenance Dept

Compliance Review Period 07/1/2023 - 07/31/2023
Section 1 Total number of PMis completed 17
PM A's Target Miles 5000 4
PM B's Target Miles 10000 4
PM C's Target Miles 30000 0
PM E's Target Miles 60000 0
PM 2's (disinfecting) [rarget Days 31 9
Buses completed PM Type Miles From previous PM On time Late

218 A 5000

341 Z 25

342 AJZ 5000/31

343 B 5000

347 z 29

348 AfZ 5000/26

354 B 5000

355 A 5000

358 B/Z 5000/30

359 Z 27

361 B/Z 5000/16 X
Buses completed PM Type Miles From previous PM On time Late




362 VA 36

364 z 28 X
Accesible equipment in PMs YES
Copies of PMs available YES
SECTION 2 Major Maintenance Projects
Major MaintenanceProjects completed ? YES
Notes I
SECTION 3: Records Retention
Current List of TAPS Vehicles YES
Daily Vehicle Checklists YES
Preventative Maintenance Checklists YES
Warranty Claims NO
SECTION 4: Facilities / Equipment Condition
Maintenance Facilities in Good Condition ? Yes / No
Notes [

Checklist completed 7/3/2023

Equipment in Good Condition ?

Notes |

checklist compieted 7/28/2023

Reviewers Signature Date




	TAPS Board Agenda 8.16.23 (1)
	Board Minutes 5.17.23 (1)
	Huitt-Zollars Agreement (2)
	Bank Report (3)
	Finance Report (1)
	Capital Projects (2)
	Operations Update (1)

